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ESSSuper has made reasonable efforts to ensure the accuracy of this Annual Report but does not accept liability for
acts or omissions based on its content. ESSSuper reserves the right to correct any error or omission. The information
contained in this Annual Report is of a general nature only. It should not be considered as a substitute for reading
ESSSuper’s Product Disclosure Statement (PDS) that contains detailed information about ESSSuper products, services
and features. Before making a decision about an ESSSuper product, you should consider the appropriateness of the
product to your personal objectives, financial situation and needs. It may also be beneficial to seek professional advice
from a licensed financial planner or adviser. An ESSSuper PDS is available at esssuper.com.au or by calling 1300 650 161.
Investment returns are not guaranteed. All investments carry risks and past investment performance gives no
indication of future performance. Benefits in ESSSuper’s Accumulation Plan, Income Streams and Beneficiary Account
products are not guaranteed or underwritten by the Victorian Government or ESSSuper, and ESSSuper does not
come under the jurisdiction of the Superannuation Complaints Tribunal. ESSSuper comes under the jurisdiction of the
Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal.
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Meeting the challenge Contents
For almost 100 years, ESSSuper and its preceding funds have
acted as trustees on behalf of the Victorian Government, its
employer agencies and their employees. These organisations
have administered the State’s complex statutory defined benefit
superannuation funds and obligations and, in addition to this,
they administer the ESSSuper Accumulation Plan.
The beneficiaries (members) are public servants who have
provided essential services to the community. They include
Victoria Police, Metropolitan Fire and Emergency Services,
Ambulance Victoria, Country Fire Authority, State schools
and State Government employees who began employment
before 1994.
ESSSuper is one of Australia’s largest superannuation funds,
with defined benefit and accumulation fund assets exceeding
$27 billion. ESSSuper administers superannuation for
over 134,000 members, of whom almost 53,000 receive
a fortnightly pension.
ESSSuper’s mission is to assist members achieve their
superannuation and retirement goals while meeting
stakeholder responsibilities.

Top ratings
ESSSuper has received a number of respected industry awards and
continues to rate highly for member satisfaction and advocacy.
ESSSuper’s Accumulation Plan and Beneficiary Account products
have been awarded a Platinum rating as one of Australia’s ‘best
value for money’ funds for eight and seven consecutive years
respectively by independent superannuation research provider
SuperRatings*. ESSSuper’s Income Stream product has also been
rated Platinum for nine consecutive years, placing all three in the
top 25% of products in the market. For the third year running,
ESSSuper was named a top ranked fund for both Member
Satisfaction and Net Promoter Score, which is independently
conducted by Investment Trends as part of their annual Member
Sentiment and Communications Report. The report measures
the level of customer satisfaction provided by their fund and the
likelihood of members recommending their fund to others.
For the second year in a row, ESSSuper was also awarded winner
for Best Government Contact Centre Operation (less than
30 staff ) at the National Government Contact Centre Summit.
ESSSuper was previously named Industry Super Fund of the Year
in the 2014 and 2015 Customer Satisfaction Awards conducted
by Roy Morgan Research.
* Visit www.superratings.com.au to learn more.
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Structure
ESSSuper (Emergency Services & State Super) is the registered
business name of the Emergency Services Superannuation Board
(the Board) (ABN 28 161 296 741).
The Board manages and administers the Emergency Services
Superannuation Scheme and all other administered schemes
(the Fund) (ABN 85 894 637 037).
The Fund is governed by the Emergency Services Superannuation
Act 1986 (Vic) and provides benefits for current and former
Victorian emergency services employees, certain public sector
employees and their partners.
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2016 / 2017 Highlights
Top rated super fund by our members

Reached $27 billion in total retirement savings,
up from $24 billion from the previous year

As a result of strong growth and performance,
the Accumulation fund achieved the milestone
of $5 billion +, up 14%
Superannuation reforms arising from the 2016 Federal
budget successfully implemented and communicated
Top quartile investment performance for the
Accumulation Growth default option over a ten
year period
Ranked 1st for member satisfaction and 2nd
for advocacy in the Investment Trends Member
Sentiment and Communications Report
Members Online achieved a 35% increase in member
registrations, with 70% of active members now enjoying
the benefits
Increased digital service offerings to provide greater
flexibility through Members Online and the ESSSuper
mobile app and AssistMe, which is available to our
retired Income Stream members
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Message from the President
It is with great pleasure that I present the
ESSSuper Annual Report for 2017
ESSSuper continued to perform strongly across the year, delivering
great investment returns and enhanced services to provide better
value to our members.
We are one of Australia’s largest super funds with more than
134,000 members and over $27 billion in assets, as at 30 June 2017.
Our members form a special group who continually inspire us,
each making essential contributions to the Victorian community
- a theme that unites the team and guides us in all that we do.
Our mission remains unchanged. At ESSSuper we are committed
to delivering the best possible superannuation and retirement
outcomes for our members.
ESSSuper was once again the top-rated Fund for member
sentiment and second for advocacy in the Investment Trends
Member Sentiment and Communications Report. The survey
measures the likelihood of members recommending their fund
to others and the level of customer satisfaction provided by their
Fund. It’s been an exceptional year for ESSSuper in this regard
and our performance is also reflected in our consistently high
member satisfaction levels.

There have been some changes to Board membership this year.
I thank Phil Wilson who retired in March, for his strong contribution
to the Board over six years. I am also delighted to welcome
Colin Birch who was appointed to the Board in January 2017 and
we benefit greatly from and appreciate the continued service of
Sarah Barker, Alex Gagachef, Adam Gullo and Susan Pelka.
On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank our talented CEO,
Mark Puli, his Executive Team and all the dedicated staff at
ESSSuper for their hard work and commitment. It is a privilege
to work with them.
As we turn our thoughts to the ensuing years, we are very mindful
that we live in challenging times globally in economic, political,
environmental, technological and social dimensions. The potential
for volatility and uncertainty continues to sharpen our focus on
the need for a proactive approach to meeting the future service
and delivery needs of our members. For the year ahead, our key
focus is fixed firmly on delivering strong investment returns and
capitalising on opportunities to further enhance service delivery
to members and to continue to ‘future-proof’ the organisation.
Yours sincerely,

For further details on the many achievements of 2017, I refer you
to the rest of this report.
The Board is tasked with the oversight of every aspect of the
Fund including governance, risk, investments, administration,
communications and service delivery. The role of the Board also
includes defining the strategic direction of the Fund, ensuring
that all staff operate in the best interests of members, and that
the Fund is administered in accordance with all legislative and
regulatory obligations.

Joan Fitzpatrick
ESSSuper President
August 2017

The Board collaborates regularly with the CEO and Executive
team and participates in a range of special focus Committees.
My sincere thanks go to the Board, particularly the chairs and
co-chairs of the Board Committees.
¢¢

Paul Mulraney Chair of the Finance and External
Audit Committee

¢¢

Elizabeth Flynn Chair of the Governance,
Risk and Compliance Committee

¢¢

Michael Stephenson and Angela Stringer
Co-Chairs of the Benefits & Service Committee

¢¢

Doug Kearsley Chair of the Investment Committee

¢¢

Dean Glare Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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Message from the CEO
Making super simple

Investment Update

At ESSSuper we are committed to supporting our members
grow their super balances all the way through their working lives
and support them in retirement. To do this we will continue to
focus on new products and services that empower our members
to make informed decisions about how to achieve long term
financial security.

The Victorian Funds Management Corporation achieved
solid performance, with the ESSS Defined Benefit Fund assets
producing an annual return, net of fees, before taxes of 11.9%
and the assets for the State Super members achieving an annual
return, net of fees, before taxes of 12.5%.

This was the underlying principle that led to the development
of a new online tool, AssistMe, exclusively for post-retirement
members.
AssistMe is an online general advice service that we developed
with valuable input from our members. AssistMe reduces what
can be a highly complex decision framework into a series of
simple graphics and animations that explain the key financial
trade-offs a member faces. The tool uses gamification to provide
a more entertaining way of bringing to life the realities of the
decisions they face.
While AssistMe is exclusively for Retirement Income Stream
members, it is an example of the Fund’s desire to invest in more
digital general advice tools for our members.

ESSSuper’s accumulation investment strategy is designed for
Defined Benefit members moving into products impacted
by investment markets. Five year returns for all accumulation
investment options were positive, with the default growth option
achieving a 5 year annualised return of 9.28%, and exceeded
investment objectives.

Management and staff
Many dedicated staff work hard to provide exceptional service
for our members. I’d like to thank my Executive team and our staff
who have worked tirelessly throughout the year – their efforts
have been a big driver of our success over the past year.

Looking forward

We remain committed to strengthening the digital capabilities
of the Fund inline with member expectations. This year we were
excited by the release of the ESSSuper mobile app. This has
provided members with even more choices on how to access
their super, at any time and from their favourite device.

Looking ahead you can expect us to continue to focus on our
strategic priorities with members at the core. We are excited to
build on the momentum we have generated across the year and
for the opportunities that lie ahead, especially engaging members
first, through more sophisticated digital enablement tools.

We’ll be rolling out more tools, education, and advice
opportunities for you, and continuously improving our product
capabilities to meet your needs.

Overall, the outlook for investment markets looks positive but we
can continue to see some volatility as we’ve come to expect the
unexpected. Our focus is on delivering consistent long-term returns
so we can continue to help you build your retirement savings.

Growth
Towards the end of the financial year, the total retirement savings for
our members reached $27 billion, up from $24 billion. In particular,
there was strong growth and performance for the Accumulation
Fund where in June the total net funds under management reached
$5 billion, up 14 per cent from the previous year.

In a continually evolving super industry, I’m looking forward
to helping our members achieve their retirement goals. Across
ESSSuper, our employees are passionate about putting members
first every day, and we thank you for your continued support.

Federal Budget Reforms
The superannuation reforms announced as part of the 2016
Federal Budget have been highly complex to implement and
have required significant investment in resources to comply
with these reforms. On 1 July 2017 the biggest raft of changes
to super in almost a decade came into effect.
Safeguarding our members and preparing them for the changes
was the primary concern. The team at ESSSuper were unwavering
when it came to keeping the members informed and educated
on what the changes meant for them.
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Mark Puli
ESSSuper CEO
August 2017

Our history and our members
State super members
State super defined benefit funds
Established by the Superannuation Act 1925, these funds are governed by the State Superannuation Act 1988, the State Employees
Retirement Benefits Act 1979, the Transport Superannuation Act 1988, the Superannuation Act 1958 and relevant trust deeds.
Fund name

Opened

Closed

Members include …

Benefits typically paid as a …

Revised Scheme

01/07/75

30/06/88

employees of the Victorian public
service, teaching service and
participating agencies.

life pension on retirement, resignation,
dismissal, retrenchment, disability or death.

New Scheme

01/07/88

31/12/93

employees of the Victorian public
service, teaching service and
participating agencies.

lump sum on retirement, resignation, dismissal,
retrenchment, ill health, disability (pension)
or death.

State Employees Retirement
Benefits (SERB) Scheme

23/01/80

30/06/88

State Government statutory body
employees ineligible for the
Revised Scheme.

life pension and lump sum on retirement,
resignation, dismissal, retrenchment, disability
or death.

Transport Scheme

01/07/88

31/12/93

Transport authority employees defined lump sum on retirement, resignation, dismissal,
in the Transport Superannuation Act 1988. retrenchment, ill health, disability (pension)
or death.

Original Scheme

25/11/25

30/06/75

Victorian Public Service employees
including Railways, Teaching, Police
and other approved agencies.

life pension on retirement, resignation,
dismissal, retrenchment, ill health or death.

Metropolitan Transit
Authority Superannuation
Scheme

1/10/84

30/6/89

Metropolitan Transit
Authority employees.

life pension on retirement, resignation,
retrenchment, ill health, disability or death.

Melbourne Water
Corporation Employees
Superannuation
Scheme (also known
as Water Industry
Superannuation Scheme)

Section C
24/6/81

31/12/93

Melbourne Water Corporation
Employees, Yarra Valley Water,
City West Water, South East
Water and Enetech employees.

Section B – lump sum on retirement,
resignation, retrenchment, death or disability.

Section B
1/9/87

Section C – pension and/or lump sum on
retirement, resignation, retrenchment, death
or disability.

State-funded employers regularly contribute to state super funds for employed members. Commonwealth-funded employers
contribute when member benefits are paid.
At the Victorian Treasurer’s discretion, the Consolidated Fund (the Government’s primary financial account) may contribute additional
amounts to these defined benefit funds.
Contribution rates and requirements vary. For further information refer to our funds on our website, esssuper.com.au/super
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Members of Parliament

Beneficiary Account

Members of the Parliamentary Contributory
Superannuation Fund

This accumulation style fund allows ESSS DB Fund members to
leave their optional ‘untaxed’ benefit invested with ESSSuper
after leaving emergency services employment.

The Parliamentary Contributory Superannuation Fund (PCSF)
was established as a continuing fund on 1 December 1968,
by the Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968.

A lump sum benefit is paid equal to the total of the account
balance plus investment earnings, less any investment losses,
expenses, withdrawals and tax.

ESSSuper took over the assets and liabilities of the PCSF,
previously governed by the Parliamentary Contributory
Superannuation Act 1962. The purpose of the PCSF is to provide
benefits to Members of Parliament (Victorian) on ceasing their
Parliamentary positions. The PCSF provides death benefits for the
spouse and domestic partner of the deceased member whether
he/she is in receipt of a pension benefit or is in Parliamentary
Service.

The Beneficiary Account is not guaranteed or underwritten by
ESSSuper or the Victorian Government.

Membership of the PCSF is compulsory for Members of Parliament
who were elected prior to the closure of the PCSF on 9 November
2004. Members must contribute at the rate of 11.5% of after-tax
salary.
The PCSF was transferred into the Emergency Services
Superannuation Scheme by Part 4AC of the Emergency Services
Superannuation Act 1986 on 1 April 2014.

Emergency services members
ESSS Defined Benefit Fund
Governed by the Emergency Services Superannuation Act 1986
(Vic), this is the default defined benefit fund for emergency
services employees. This fund is available to:
¢¢

All operational employees of the Victoria Police, Metropolitan
Fire & Emergency Services Board, Ambulance Victoria and
Country Fire Authority.

¢¢

Certain employees of the Department of Environment, Land,
Water & Planning.

¢¢

Non-operational employees who began with their
emergency services employer before 1 January 1994.

The ESSS Defined Benefit Fund pays benefits to members on
retirement, resignation, dismissal, retrenchment, disability and death.
All benefits, excluding some disability benefits, are paid as a lump
sum based on salary, membership, age and contribution rate/s.
Employers make regular contributions based on the accruing
cost of members’ benefits. These contributions are recorded to
the Fund, not individual memberships.
Member contribution rates and requirements vary.
For further information refer to our funds on our website,
esssuper.com.au
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All members
ESSSuper offers pre and post-retirement accumulation and
associated insurance products to all members and their partners.
These products are governed by the Emergency Services
Superannuation Act 1986 (Vic).
Accumulation Plan
The Accumulation Plan is open to emergency services
employees, state super members and their partners.
Benefits equal the total of all contributions (personal and
employer and roll-ins) plus investment earnings, less any
investment losses, expenses, insurance premiums, withdrawals
and tax. Lump sum benefits are typically paid on retirement,
resignation, retrenchment, disability or death.
Income Streams
ESSSuper offers two types of income streams to members and
their partners.
¢¢

Retirement Income Stream – allows members who have
met a condition of release to convert their lump sum
superannuation benefit into a flexible regular income stream
in retirement.

¢¢

Working Income Stream (transition to retirement income
stream) – allows members over preservation age to receive
a regular income payment whilst they continue to work.

Accumulation Plan and Income Stream benefits are not guaranteed
or underwritten by ESSSuper or the Victorian Government.

Member services

Individual service from Member Education Consultants

ESSSuper offers a wide range of services to help members
understand their superannuation.

ESSSuper’s Member Education Consultants:
¢¢

meet with members at their workplace, ESSSuper’s head
office and ESSSuper’s regional hubs.

¢¢

give factual information and general advice about
ESSSuper’s products and benefits.

¢¢

are ASIC Regulatory Guide 146 (RG146) accredited and
maintain this through ongoing training and continuing
professional development.

Access to information when members need it
ESSSuper’s website keeps members up to date with
superannuation news and has forms, calculators, seminar
schedules and more.
Members Online gives members secure, 24-hour online access
to their superannuation account. ESSSuper also sends regular
newsletters and communications.
Helping members understand their superannuation
During the year, ESSSuper holds tailored member seminars at its
head office and across Victoria. These free seminars cover pre and
post-retirement topics such as boosting superannuation savings,
planning for retirement, financial planning and income streams.
Contact
ESSSuper’s Member Service Centre handles inquiries from
8.30 am to 5.00 pm weekdays. Members can also call to book
a personal appointment with a Member Education Consultant
or attend a member seminar:
¢¢

Emergency services members call 1300 650 161.

¢¢

State super members call 1300 655 476.

Financial advice
ESSSuper has an arrangement with Adviser Network Pty Ltd
(Australian Financial Services Licence (AFSL) No. 232729)
(Adviser Network) under which Adviser Network and its
authorised representatives may provide members with fee-forservice (commission free) financial product advice.
This means members only pay for the time it takes to provide
them with the advice or to complete a financial plan.
Under this arrangement, Adviser Network authorises certain
qualified ESSSuper financial planners to provide financial product
advice to ESSSuper members. Although these financial planners
are employed by ESSSuper, the advice will be provided under
Adviser Network’s AFSL and Adviser Network is responsible for
the financial services advice provided. ESSSuper pays Adviser
Network a fee for this service. However, neither the Board,
ESSSuper nor the Victorian Government guarantee or endorse
any financial advice, recommendations and actions of the
financial advice provider.
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The Board
The Emergency Services Superannuation Board was established
under the Emergency Services Superannuation Act 1986 (Vic)
(the ESS Act).

Board Members for the 2016/17 financial year*

The Board must act in the best interest of the Fund and its
members and ensure the Fund complies with all relevant laws.

Joan Fitzpatrick - President
Appointed 8 February 2016
Term expires 7 February 2019

The Board comprises six member elected Members and six
Government appointed Members.

Board Member appointment
The ESS Act governs Board Member appointment and removal.
A Board Member is appointed for a term of up to five years.
Each elected Board Member has an elected deputy. Up to three
appointed deputies serve appointed Board Members.
State super members elect three Board Members and their deputies.
Emergency services (and all other) members elect three Board
Members and their deputies as follows:
¢¢

Victoria Police and Police Association employees.

¢¢

Metropolitan Fire & Emergency Services Board and Country
Fire Authority employees.

¢¢

Employees of Ambulance Victoria, Department of
Environment and Primary Industries (DEPI), ESSSuper and
other participating employers not listed above.

To resolve state super member benefit entitlement matters,
at least two of the three Board Members elected by state super
members must vote in favour.
To resolve emergency services member benefit entitlement
matters, at least two of the three Board Members elected by
emergency services members must vote in favour.
Board Members complete Private Interest and Disqualified
Persons Declarations. Subject to limited exceptions, trustee
liability insurance covers Board Members and staff against
financial loss from claims.

Government appointed

Sarah Barker
Appointed 1 October 2015
Term expires 30 September 2018
Susan Pelka
Appointed 7 June 2016
Term expires 6 June 2019

Paul Mulraney
Appointed 18 October 2016
Term expires 17 October 2019

State super member elected
Alexander Gagachef
Reappointed 1 January 2017
Term expires 31 December 2021
Dean Glare
Reappointed 1 January 2017
Term expires 31 December 2021
Angela Stringer
Reappointed 1 January 2017
Term expires 31 December 2021
Emergency services member elected
Adam Gullo – Fire
Appointed 1 January 2013
Term expires 31 December 2017
Michael Stephenson – Ambulance and other employers
Reappointed 1 January 2013
Term expires 31 December 2017

Colin Birch – Police
Appointed 11 February 2017
Term expires 31 December 2017
* Refer page 9 for board member duties.
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Doug Kearsley
Appointed 16 August 2016
Term expires 15 August 2019

Elizabeth Flynn
Term expired 28 May 2017
Reappointed 30 May 2017
Term expires 29 August 2017

Phillip Wilson – Police
Reappointed 1 January 2013
Retired 10 February 2017
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Hon. William Baxter
Appointed 1 September 2013
Term expired 31 August 2016

Board and organisational structure
Board Member duties
Board Member

Finance & External
Audit Committee

Governance,
Risk & Compliance
Committee

Sarah Barker

Benefits & Service
Committee

Investment
Committee

Member

Member

Remuneration
Committee

Joan Fitzpatrick
Elizabeth Flynn

Member
Member

Chair

Doug Kearsley

Chair

Paul Mulraney

Chair

Member

Susan Pelka

Member

Member

Member
Member

Alex Gagachef

Member

Dean Glare
Adam Gullo

Member

Member
Member

Member

Member

Chair

Member

Michael Stephenson

Co-Chair

Angela Stringer

Member

Member

Co-Chair

Colin Birch

Member

Member

Member

Member

Organisational structure

ESSSUPER
BOARD*

CEO
Mark Puli

CFO

Operations

People
& Culture

Paul Healey

Todd Johnson^

Mike Cormack

Member
Engagement

Governance
& Product

Chief
Transformation
Officer

Brad Weldon

Alison Anthony

Tim Richardson

* Please refer to page 8 for Board Member details.
^ As at 30 June 2017.
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Board aims and duties

Risk management

ESSSuper is an exempt public sector superannuation scheme
under the Commonwealth Superannuation Industry (Supervision)
Act 1993 (SIS).

ESSSuper knows risk management is vital to good corporate
governance. The Board and Management have taken a leading role
in driving risk awareness and establishing a risk culture throughout
the business. This includes an enterprise-wide risk management
framework that meets Victorian Government requirements.

The 2014 Heads of Government Agreement (HOGA) sets out
Commonwealth retirement income policy principles that the
Victorian Government must follow to ensure consistent national
superannuation standards.
Section 6 of the Emergency Services Superannuation Act 1986 (the
ESS Act) sets out the Board’s aims and duties, which are to:
¢¢

Collect contributions and other assets due to the Emergency
Services Superannuation Scheme or another administered
fund (the funds).

¢¢

Manage and determine fund asset investment goals for optimal
risk and return while providing fund payments and exercising
reasonable care and prudence to maintain fund integrity.

¢¢

Administer benefit payments.

¢¢

Operate efficiently.

Attestation for compliance with Ministerial Standing
Direction 3.7.1
‘I, Joan Fitzpatrick certify that the Emergency Services
Superannuation Scheme has complied with the Ministerial
Standing Direction 3.7.1 - Risk Management Framework and
Processes. The Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme
Governance, Risk and Compliance Committee has verified this.’

Joan Fitzpatrick
President of the Board

¢¢

Adopt practices with regard to member and employer interests.

¢¢

Inform members about their rights and benefits.

Committees

¢¢

Liaise with relevant industrial organisations on member interests.

To help fulfil its duties, the Board delegates specialist
responsibilities to committees. Five committees examine
significant functions, track and assess performance and make
Board recommendations.

Fund administration
The Board administers the Emergency Services Superannuation
Scheme, the former funds of the State Superannuation Fund and
the Parliamentary Contributory Superannuation Fund (PCSF).
The Board is the paying agent for Government pensions and
allowances payable to former employees and members of the
organisations and funds:

Benefits & Service Committee
This Committee:
¢¢

Oversees and advises on product development and benefits
and services to members.

¢¢

Determines appeals, reviews decisions and resolves member
benefit disputes.

¢¢

Royal Mint.

¢¢

Casual Fire Fighters Compensation Fund.

¢¢

Section 9(2) of the Ombudsman Act 1973 – Ombudsman.

¢¢

Reviews policies to address member benefit provision trends.

¢¢

Supreme Court Act 1986 – Master of Supreme Court.

¢¢

Helps the Board meet product management responsibilities.

Constitution Act 1975 – Judges, Solicitor-General and the Governor.

¢¢

Meets quarterly (more often if needed).

County Court Act 1958 – County Court Judges, Chief and Senior
Chief Prosecutor, Chief Magistrate, Master of County Court.

¢¢

Comprises two groups of four Board Members (one to
represent state super members and one to represent
emergency services members).

¢¢
¢¢

Decisions affecting emergency services members are determined
by the two Board Members elected by emergency services
members and the two Government-appointed Board Members.
Decisions affecting state super members are determined by the
two Board Members elected by state super members and the
same two Government-appointed Board Members.
If the Committee cannot reach a decision, it may refer any matter
to the Board.
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Finance and External Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

This Committee:

This Committee:

¢¢

Oversees and advises on the development and
implementation of policies and systems for external audit,
and financial reporting.

¢¢

Helps the Board fulfil its statutory duties relating to Chief
Executive Officer and Executive remuneration and succession
strategy for the Board and staff.

¢¢

Helps the Board meet financial management responsibilities.

¢¢

Meets twice a year.

¢¢

Monitors external auditor performance and reviews external
audit findings.

¢¢

Comprises two Government-appointed Board Members and
two member-elected Board Members.

¢¢

Reports material findings to the Board.

¢¢

Reviews financial management and reporting processes.

Compliance

¢¢

May seek independent expert advice.

¢¢

Meets quarterly.

¢¢

Comprises three Government-appointed Board Members and
three member-elected Board Members.

ESSSuper is an exempt public sector superannuation
scheme under SIS (which deems such schemes compliant for
concessional taxation and superannuation guarantee purposes).

Governance, Risk and Compliance Committee
This Committee:
¢¢

Oversees and advises on the development and
implementation of policies and systems for internal audit,
internal control, risk management and compliance.

¢¢

Helps the Board meet risk management responsibilities.

¢¢

Monitors internal auditor performance and reviews internal
audit findings.

¢¢

Reports material findings to the Board.

¢¢

Reviews risk management program implementation
and operation.

¢¢

May seek independent expert advice.

¢¢

Meets quarterly.

¢¢

Comprises three Government-appointed Board Members and
three member-elected Board Members.

Investment Committee
This Committee:
¢¢

Oversees and advises on Fund investment goals.

¢¢

Is responsible for investment decisions on accumulation
assets, investment performance monitoring and investment
compliance process and internal control oversight.

¢¢

Oversees investment governance obligations as a signatory
to the Principles of Responsible Investment.

¢¢

Meets quarterly.

¢¢

Comprises three Government-appointed Board Members and
three member-elected Board Members.

The Victorian Government has agreed to the Commonwealth’s
retirement income principles in the 2014 HOGA and
Commonwealth superannuation and taxation law.
These principles include preservation standards, benefit
reporting, regular audit and actuarial reviews and member
vesting, representation, MySuper, trustee and investment
governance, risk management, operational risk mitigation, data
and e-commerce standards, reporting to Australian Prudential
Regulation Authority (APRA) and Australian Taxation Office (ATO)
and accrued benefit protection.
The Victorian Government must give the Commonwealth
Government a copy of ESSSuper’s Annual Report and confirm
there has been no legislative change in the governing rules of
its exempt public sector superannuation schemes that would
breach the HOGA.
ESSSuper has a detailed program to assess compliance with
internal policies and procedures, Victorian Acts of Parliament
and Commonwealth superannuation and taxation law. Results
are reported regularly to ESSSuper’s Governance, Risk and
Compliance Committee.

Prudential Superannuation Standard
From 1 July 2015, Section 6B was inserted into the Emergency
Services Superannuation Act 1986. Section 6B requires the Board
to comply with the Prudential Superannuation Standard made by
order of the Governor in Council. The Governor in Council made
an order under Section 6B of the ESS Act to issue the Prudential
Superannuation Standard on 29 October 2015. The PSS applies
reporting and compliance requirements similar to APRAregulated superannuation funds to ESSSuper.
For the 2016/17 financial year, ESSSuper’s President and CEO
attested to the Department of Treasury & Finance that the Board
has complied with the PSS.

ESSSuper Annual Report 2017
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Compliance with Protected Disclosure Act 2012

Occupational health & safety (OH&S)

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 encourages and assists people
in making disclosures of improper conduct by public officers and
public bodies. The Act provides protection to people who make
disclosures in accordance with the Act and establishes a system
for the matters disclosed to be investigated and rectifying action
to be taken.

ESSSuper provides a safe, healthy workplace and encourages
healthy work and lifestyle practices. A management system has
been put in place to monitor health and safety issues in line
with the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004 and the Equal
Opportunity Act 1995.

ESSSuper does not tolerate improper conduct by employees,
nor the taking of reprisals against those who come forward
to disclose such conduct. It is committed to ensuring
transparency and accountability in our administrative and
management practices and supports the making of disclosures
that reveal corrupt conduct, conduct involving a substantial
mismanagement of public resources, or conduct involving a
substantial risk to public health and safety or the environment.
ESSSuper will take all reasonable steps to protect people who
make such disclosures from any detrimental action in reprisal
for making the disclosure.
It will also afford natural justice to the person who is the subject
of the disclosure to the extent it is legally possible.
Reporting procedures
Disclosures of improper conduct or detrimental action by
ESSSuper or its employees and/or officers may be made to the
Protected Disclosure Coordinator, or in their absence, the General
Manager Governance & Product.
Alternatively, disclosures of improper conduct or detrimental
action by ESSSuper or its employees may also be made directly
to the Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission
(IBAC):

During the 2016/17 financial year, a number of initiatives were in
place to support the health and safety of staff, including:
¢¢

Biannual workplace inspections to identify and address any
workplace risks.

¢¢

Ergonomic assessments.

¢¢

Wellness seminars.

¢¢

Health screenings.

¢¢

Vaccinations.

¢¢

Workplace fruit boxes.

¢¢

An Employee Assistance Program.

A particular focus during the year was providing critical
incident support to staff following the Bourke Street incident
in January 2017.
ESSSuper has maintained a consistently low number of incidents
and WorkCover claims over time, and this is reflected in
ESSSuper’s performance against OH&S management measures:
Measure

KPI

Incidents

Number of reported
hazards / incidents

The Protected Disclosure Policy, which outlines the system for
reporting disclosures of improper conduct or detrimental action
by ESSSuper or any of its employees and/or officers, is available
on ESSSuper’s website.

Disclosures under the Protected Disclosure
Act 2012
The number of disclosures made by an individual to ESSSuper
and notified to the IBAC:
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2016/17

7

8

10

4.73

5.33

6.64

Claims

1

1

0

0.68

0.67

0

Average cost
per claim

$1,300

$498.82

0

Fatality claims

Nil

Nil

Nil

Number of lost
time claims
Rate per 100 FTE

Phone: 1300 735 135
Internet: www.ibac.vic.gov.au
Email: ibac.vic.gov.au/report-corruption-or-misconduct/online-form
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2015/16

Rate per 100 FTE

IBAC
GPO BOX 24234
Melbourne VIC 3000

Assessable disclosures

2014/15

2016/17

2015/16

0

0

Fatalities

Competition
ESSSuper complies with the anti-competitive conduct provisions
of Part IV of the Commonwealth Competition and Consumer Act
2012 and the Victorian Government Competitive Neutrality Policy
assessment procedures.

Consultants

Privacy

2016/17 one consultant was used where the fees incurred were
greater than $10,000. The total costs were $29,000.

Emergency Services Superannuation Board ABN 28 161 296 741
(the Board) is the Trustee of the Emergency Services
Superannuation Scheme ABN 85 894 637 037 (The Fund).
The Board respects the privacy of ESSSuper members and
will store, record and use the information pertaining to their
nominated account in accordance with the Privacy and Data
Protection Act 2014 and ESSSuper’s Privacy Policy.

Full details can be found on our website at esssuper.com.au/OSP
Disclosure of Information & Communication Technology
(ICT) expenditure
The table below outlines total ICT expenditure for the 2016/17
financial year.
‘000’s
Business as Usual:

$5,938

Non Business as Usual:
Operating Expense
Capital Expense
Total ICT Expenditure

$1,536
$7,474

The capital expense is primarily attributed to project spend on
IT upgrades.

Freedom of Information
ESSSuper complies with the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (Vic).
This financial year the Board received six general Freedom of
Information (FOI) requests from the public. ESSSuper processed
compliant requests in eight to 39 days. At publication, none were
on appeal.
FOI requests go to ESSSuper’s Freedom of Information Officer.
From 1 July 2017 the document request application fee is $28.40.

Local Jobs First - Victorian Industry
Participation Policy
The Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 requires
Departments and public sector bodies to report on the
implementation of the Local Jobs First - Victorian Industry
Participation Policy (Local Jobs First - VIPP). Departments and
public sector bodies are required to apply the Local Jobs First VIPP in all procurement activities valued at $3 million or more in
metropolitan Melbourne and for state-wide projects, or $1 million
or more for procurement activities in regional Victoria.
During 2016-17, ESSSuper did not have any contracts valued at
or above these levels.

The information requested from members is required to
establish, manage and pay superannuation entitlements
(including insurance benefits), to assist employers to meet
their superannuation obligations, to provide members with
information and updates on legislative and policy changes
relevant to superannuation and insurance and to enable
service providers contracted by the Board to provide the above
mentioned services.
The types of organisations to which we usually disclose personal
information generally include: employers, our auditors, insurer,
actuaries, medical and rehabilitation practitioners, investigators,
printers, mail houses, administration software providers (and
website hosts), other superannuation funds, courts, death
benefit beneficiaries, a member’s spouse or partner as part
of a divorce settlement or separation (where required by law),
the Victorian Government and other Government agencies
(such as the Australian Taxation Office, Centrelink, the Victorian
Civil and Administrative Tribunal and the Department of Treasury
and Finance).
Members have the right to access and correct personal information.
Requests to update personal information, or any queries relating
to privacy should, in the first instance, be referred to the ESSSuper
Member Service Centre on 1300 651 161. Written queries and
complaints should be addressed to:
The Privacy Officer
ESSSuper
GPO Box 1974
Melbourne VIC 3001
Requests for access to documents containing personal
information should be made through the Freedom of Information
Act 1982, and should be addressed to the Freedom of Information
Officer at the above address.
Members can read our Privacy Statement at esssuper.com.au

Building
ESSSuper does not own or control any government buildings,
therefore it is exempt from notifying compliance with the
building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993.
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Learning more
Information on request

Our advisers and service providers

This Annual Report highlights ESSSuper’s activities for the year.
Members wishing to know more can call ESSSuper to access:

Actuary

¢¢

ESSSuper’s governing law.

¢¢

The latest audited financial statements and auditor’s report.

¢¢

Board Member appointment and removal rules.

¢¢

Extracts from the latest Actuary’s report.

¢¢

Auditor (external)
¢¢

The Auditor-General to Victoria

¢¢

RSM Australia Partners as agent for the Auditor-General
to Victoria

Members can also visit esssuper.com.au for:
¢¢

Superannuation news.

¢¢

Fund developments.

¢¢

Investment performance details.

Complaints handling process
ESSSuper has a formal dispute handling process comprising an
internal and external avenue of appeal.
Complaints are accepted in any form: in person, by phone, fax,
email or in writing. ESSSuper contact details can be found at
esssuper.com.au/about
If a complaint cannot be resolved by the Complaints Officer,
the member may request in writing that the matter be
independently reviewed.
If the complaint relates to an ESSSuper decision concerning
entitlements under the Fund’s governing rules, the matter
may be referred to the Board’s Benefits & Service Committee.
The member will be notified of the final decision in writing
and of any external avenues of appeal in the event that they
are still dissatisfied.
If the member disputes the Board’s decision following its
reconsideration of the matter, they may make an application
to the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT).
VCAT, established under the Victorian Civil & Administrative
Tribunal Act 1998, is a body that deals with a range of disputes
in an efficient and cost effective manner. VCAT has the power to
review decisions made by the Board that relate to a member’s
benefit entitlements. VCAT can affirm, vary or set aside a decision,
or refer back to ESSSuper for reconsideration.
ESSSuper does not come under the jurisdiction of the
Superannuation Complaints Tribunal.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Auditor (internal)
¢¢

KPMG

Banker
¢¢

Westpac Banking Corporation

Custodian
¢¢

NAB Asset Servicing

¢¢

State Street

Fund insurer
¢¢

CommInsure (Accumulation Plan)

Trustee liability and crime insurer
¢¢

Dual Australia

¢¢

Vero Insurance

¢¢

XL Insurance Australia

¢¢

Liberty International Underwriters

¢¢

Zurich Australian Insurance

Investment adviser and implementation manager
¢¢

Victorian Funds Management Corporation
(defined benefit funds)

¢¢

Willis Towers Watson (investment adviser, accumulation Fund)

Legal adviser
¢¢

DLA Piper

¢¢

Hall & Wilcox

¢¢

Holding Redlich

¢¢

HWL Ebsworth

¢¢

Lander & Rogers

Taxation
¢¢
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Deloitte

Investments
2016/2017 Financial Year Economic
and Market Commentary
Overview
The 2016/17 Financial Year continued with the theme of
geopolitical uncertainty from the prior year. Major events
included the aftermath of the Brexit vote (which occurred in the
last few days of the prior financial year), the election of Donald
Trump as US President, as well as significant elections in Italy,
France and recently, the UK. On top of these elections, there has
been heightened tension among the US, China, Russia and North
Korea adding to ongoing geopolitical uncertainty.
Market Returns
Despite significant political uncertainty, returns for share markets
over the 2016/17 Financial Year were strong and market volatility
remained subdued. Strong share market returns were experienced
across the board, with all but one of the major developed market
countries delivering double digit returns in local currency terms, as
well as an index of emerging market equities.
Australian shares returned 13.8%, compared to 0.9% and 5.6% for
the previous two financial years respectively. The main detractor
from performance was Telecommunication Services, which
returned -21.2%. This was the only sector which experienced
a negative annual return. The Materials sector was the best
performer, returning 24.5% as markets found comfort in stabilising
commodity prices. Utilities and Financials (ex-property trusts) were
the other key performers, returning 19.7% and 18.1% respectively.
Property and Infrastructure assets also delivered another strong
year of returns, with these asset classes continuing to benefit
from investor demand for long dated, contracted cash yielding
assets with an attractive margin above the cash rate.
As share markets went from strength to strength, bond market
returns were relatively flat across the year. Both Australian and
other international bond yields rose (bond yields move in the
opposite direction to bond prices) over the course of the financial
year with significant upward shifts occurring in October 2016
and June 2017. The Australian 10 Year Government bond yield
finished 0.6% higher than in June last year at 2.6%, while the US
10 Year Government bond yield climbed 0.8% (to 2.3%) over the
same period.
The Australian dollar appreciated over the year, despite US
dollar strength following the Presidential election, to end at
76.9 US cents (up from 74.3 US cents). Over the same period the
Australian dollar also strengthened against the currencies of its
major trading partners, with the Trade Weighted Index ending
the year at 65.5 (up from 62.5 from last year).

Economic Overview
Australian economic indicators were largely positive for the
Financial Year. The Australian economy delivered annualised gross
domestic product (GDP) growth of 1.7% for the year (as at March
2017), marking 103 quarters without two consecutive negative
periods, regarded as one of the longest stretches of positive
growth of any developed nation. The Reserve Bank of Australia
(RBA) cut the official cash rate in August of 2016 to a new record
low of 1.5%, noting the reduced rate was adequate to generate
sustainable economic growth and to maintain inflation in its
target range of 2% - 3%.
Despite finishing the financial year with some mixed economic
data, the US experience was largely positive for the year, with
the Federal Reserve increasing the Federal Funds target rate
three times during the year by a total of 0.75% to a target range
of 1.00% - 1.25% and stating strengthening labour markets
and increasing inflation prospects as catalysts for the increases.
Actual annualised US GDP growth declined to 1.4% (as at March
2017) despite consumer spending and exports being stronger
than anticipated.
In Europe, while it was a tumultuous year politically, economic
performance was reasonably sound. The annualised growth rate
for the Eurozone rose to 1.9% (as at March 2017), up from 1.7%
the previous year and the total unemployment rate fell from
10.1% to 9.3% (as at May 2017), its lowest level since March 2009.
Despite more positive economic data, the European Central Bank
(ECB) maintained its interest rate at 0.0% at its June meeting.
However, Mario Draghi, President of the ECB, indicated that the
bank would continue to wind down its stimulus in the near term
in response to accelerating growth in Europe.
Elsewhere, the Bank of Japan (BoJ) launched a new form of
monetary easing where it set a cap of 0% on the 10-year bond
yield and vowed to overshoot its 2% inflation target. It also
maintained its extensive Japanese Government Bond (JGB)
repurchasing program and held the interest rate at -0.1%.
In China, it was a solid and largely uneventful financial year from
an economic perspective, with annualised growth coming in at
6.9% year on year (as at March 2017), a marginal increase over
the 6.7% expansion the year prior. One of the most notable
developments for Chinese financial markets was the decision
from MSCI to include some China A-Shares in their equity market
indices, signalling a positive further step towards the opening up
of the Chinese share market and its global integration.
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Investment process

Environmental, social and governance

All investments are made in accordance with the Board’s investment
goals, the Borrowing and Investment Powers Act 1987 and the
Victorian Treasurer’s Prudential Statement investment guidelines.

Environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues have the
potential to impact real member returns, especially over the
long term. ESSSuper systematically considers, understands and
manages these ESG issues by:

Investment responsibilities for the defined benefit assets transferred
to the Victorian Funds Management Corporation (VFMC) on
1 July 2006. The Board is responsible for setting investment
objectives for both the accumulation and defined benefit assets
along with the investment of the accumulation assets.
For defined benefit assets, the Board has a framework for setting
investment objectives which involves an external adviser and
implementation manager, VFMC. The Fund’s Chief Executive
Officer manages this relationship and, aided by the internal
investment team, reports to the Board throughout the year.
VFMC presents to the Board quarterly on the progress of each
manager’s performance against agreed goals.
For accumulation assets, the Board uses a specialist external
investment adviser, Willis Towers Watson. Willis Towers Watson
reports to the Board quarterly and gives periodic productbased and more frequent strategic, portfolio construction and
manager-specific advice. The internal investment team critiques,
implements and monitors decisions. This framework of internal
and external parties provides necessary checks and balances.
Specialist external investment managers (including VFMC)
manage the majority of ESSSuper assets. Managers are chosen
for their investment skills in specific markets and asset classes.
All are contracted with performance goals and reviewed
periodically – with final Board oversight.
Like other government agencies, ESSSuper is conservative in
disclosing assets subject to significant estimation uncertainty
(see page 56).

¢¢

Being a Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI) signatory.

¢¢

Proxy voting at annual (or extraordinary) general meetings
of Australian and international companies via CGI Glass Lewis.

¢¢

Subscribing to Regnan Governance Advisory Service (GAS)
via VFMC (a cornerstone Regnan investor).

The PRI provides the framework for both ESSSuper and VFMC to
consider ESG issues, including actively engaging with the Fund’s
investment managers on the integration of ESG issues into their
investment process. The Board takes an active stance on corporate
governance by voting on all resolutions for companies in which
the Fund’s assets are directly invested (this being delegated
to VFMC for the defined benefit assets but implemented by
ESSSuper’s internal investment team for accumulation assets).
The goal is to ensure that company boards consider the best
interest of shareholders, and that there is an alignment of
interests. The goals of Regnan GAS and CGI Glass Lewis are
to protect and enhance shareholder value through active
communication with companies in regard to environmental,
social and corporate governance risks.
Examples of Regnan’s (historic and upcoming) engagement include:
¢¢

Workplace health and safety, ethics and culture.

¢¢

Board diversity in terms of skills, gender and capacity of directors.

¢¢

Environmental risk management, climate change and the
reporting of associated risks.

¢¢

Anti corruption.

¢¢

Sustainability and PRI reporting.

¢¢

Executive remuneration.

¢¢

Continuous disclosure.

By carefully considering and assessing how these future risk
and opportunity factors may affect financial performance of the
investments, the Fund is aiming to maximise the long term return
to members.
Other than for tobacco and controversial weapons, ESSSuper
does not screen or exclude investment types or individual
investments through this process but attempts to analyse the
underlying risks (and therefore the investment opportunities).
Further details are contained within the ESSSuper Responsible
Investment Policy provided on the website.
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Emergency services members’ defined benefit investments
Benefits in the ESSS DB Fund are based on salary, period of
membership, age and contribution rate(s) during membership.
This means that a member’s benefit does not rely on investment
earnings for growth.
The Board has adopted a series of objectives covering Statement
of Financial Position, investment return, liquidity and protection
against movements in the Fund’s liabilities.

Asset class

Target allocation at 30/06/17

The main objectives are to:
¢¢

Ensure there is no greater than 20% probability of a 5%
reduction in the funding ratio over any 3 year period, and

¢¢

Achieve a long term return of at least CPI +5% per annum
(before tax but after fees).

The charts below show the ESSS DB Fund’s target asset
allocations at 30 June 2017 and compares this with the actual
asset allocations at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016.

Actual allocation at 30/06/17

Actual allocation at 30/06/16

 Australian Shares

26.0%

26.4%

25.6%

 Overseas Shares1

26.0%

27.0%

25.4%

 Private Equity

0.0%

0.5%

2.0%

 Property2

7.0%

7.2%

8.8%

 Cash

3.0%

2.1%

1.5%

 Inflation Linked Bonds

10.0%

8.9%

9.3%

 Diversified Fixed Interest

11.0%

10.4%

10.0%

7.0%

6.9%

6.7%

10.0%

10.7%

10.7%

 Infrastructure

2

 Non-Traditional Strategies
1

Overseas Shares uses a 50% strategic currency hedge ratio. 2 Unlisted international investments are 100% hedged.

Performance
The investment return on Emergency Services Defined Benefit
and pension assets (net of fees) for the year to 30 June 2017 was
11.86%. This performance can be compared to that of balanced
super funds in independent research firm SuperRatings’ June 2017
Survey, where the median balanced manager returned 9.74%.
The compound average investment return for defined benefit and
pension assets over the past five years (net of fees and taxes) was
11.47% p.a. This performance would be in the top quartile of funds
as measured by SuperRatings median balanced managers over the
same period.

Investment returns for the past five years, year ending 30 June
Year ended 30 June

Return (gross) %

Return (net) %

2017

12.70

11.86

2016

4.71

3.98

2015

11.78

10.13

2014

15.23

13.04

2013

16.66

14.45

5 yr compound average p.a.

12.14

11.47

Investment returns do not impact on ESSS DB Fund member benefits.
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State super members’ defined benefit investments
Retirement benefits for state super members are based on salary,
period of membership, age and contribution rate(s) during
membership. A member’s benefit generally does not rely on
investment earnings for growth.
The Board has adopted a series of objectives for these investments
which cover investment return, risk of negative return, liquidity
and protection against movements in the Fund’s liabilities.

The main objectives are to:
¢¢

Achieve a long term real investment return of at least CPI
+5.5% per annum (before tax but after fees),

¢¢

Ensure the probability of generating a negative earning rate is to
be less than 10% while retaining a 3 year smoothing policy, and

¢¢

Minimise the term of the full funding.

The charts below show the state super defined benefit funds
target asset allocations at 30 June 2017 and compares this with
the actual asset allocations at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016.

Asset class

Target allocation at 30/06/17

Actual allocation at 30/06/17

Actual allocation at 30/06/16

 Australian Shares

29.0%

29.5%

28.5%

 Overseas Shares1

29.0%

30.1%

28.8%

 Private Equity

0.0%

0.6%

2.0%

 Property2

8.0%

8.1%

8.0%

 Cash

5.0%

3.1%

5.1%

 Inflation Linked Bonds

7.5%

6.5%

7.0%

 Diversified Fixed Interest

7.5%

7.0%

7.0%

 Infrastructure

6.0%

5.3%

4.0%

8.0%

10.0%

9.6%

2

 Non-Traditional Strategies
1

Overseas Shares uses a 50% strategic currency hedge ratio. 2 Unlisted international investments are 100% hedged.

Performance
The investment return on state super defined benefit and
pension assets (net of fees) for the year ended 30 June 2017 was
12.45%. This performance can be compared to the performance
of balanced superannuation funds in independent research
company SuperRatings’ June 2017 Survey where the median
balanced manager returned 9.74%.
The compound average investment return for State
Superannuation Defined Benefit Fund over the past five years
(net of fees) was 11.82% p.a. This performance would be in the
top quartile of funds as measured by SuperRatings median
balanced managers over the same period.
The table opposite provides a comparison of the investment returns
and member crediting rates for the past five years to 30 June 2017.
Investment returns do not impact on State Super DB Fund
member benefits.
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Investment returns for the past five years, year ended 30 June
Year ended 30 June

Return (gross) %

Return (net) %

2017

13.26

12.45

2016

3.87

2.78

2015

11.90

9.82

2014

15.81

13.74

2013

18.10

15.84

5 yr compound average p.a.

12.48

11.82

Crediting Rate Policy
Members who make personal contributions and leave the Fund
prior to the minimum retirement age may be entitled to a benefit
comprising their contributions, plus earnings, applied to these
contributions (as well as a deferred benefit, which can be claimed
from age 55 or age 50 (for certain prescribed class members)).
The earnings are calculated and applied annually, at 30 June
each year, using the Declared Crediting Rate calculated as the
compound average of the Annual Crediting rate for the current
and previous two years. The Annual Crediting Rate is the actual
investment earnings net of expenses and taxation.
The Declared Crediting Rate will not be less than zero. For example,
if the result of the compound average calculation is -1.0%, then
the Declared Crediting Rate for that year would be 0.0%. Any such
shortfall is not considered in future years’ calculation of rates.
Interim Crediting Rate
An Interim Crediting Rate is applied in the year a member
leaves the Fund for the period up to the date of exit. The Interim
Crediting Rate is calculated in the same way as the Declared
Crediting Rate, except that an estimated rate is used for the
current financial year. The estimated rate will be the actual
investment earnings (net of expenses and taxation) for the year
to date, plus an assumed rate (net of expenses and taxation) for
the remainder of the financial year. The Interim Crediting Rate
will also be not less than zero.

Accumulation products investment options
and performance
For members of ESSSuper’s accumulation products
(Accumulation Plan, Beneficiary Account and Income Streams),
balances are adjusted on 30 June each year according to the
investment performance of the investment option/s in which
members are invested. Members invested in the accumulation
products have a choice of investment options. Each investment
option has its own asset allocation which may include Australian
and overseas shares, property, fixed interest, infrastructure,
absolute return funds, hedge funds, term deposits and cash.
Each option’s level of exposure to these assets depends on its risk
profile and long term performance goals. The investment options
range from high to low risk to cater for different member needs.
Details of each investment option’s goal, risk level, strategic asset
allocation and performance are shown on the following pages.
Crediting rates
Crediting rates are calculated and compounded monthly.
The rate applied to member accounts on 30 June each year is
the actual monthly earning rates, compounded for the chosen
investment options after taxation, investment management
and administration fees are deducted. If a member changes
investment options during the year or closes their account during
a financial year, the application of the earning rate is different.
The Accumulation Plan, Beneficiary Account and Income Streams
Product Disclosure Statements (PDSs) provide details on how
earning rates are calculated in these two situations. Refer to our
website for the most up-to-date copy of these PDSs. Up-to-date
earning rates are also available on the website.

ESSSuper Annual Report 2017

19

Asset allocation
and performance

Shares only

High growth

Strategic asset allocation

Asset class

Strategic Asset
Allocation

Asset Allocation
Ranges

Strategic Asset
Allocation

Asset Allocation
Ranges

 Australian Shares

40.0%

25-75%

21.0%

10-40%

 Overseas Shares1

60.0%

25-75%

31.5%

15-45%

-

-

11.0%

5-20%

 Infrastructure

-

-

10.0%

0-20%

 Alternative Strategies2

-

-

7.5%

0-15%

 Multi-asset Strategies

-

-

9.0%

0-20%

 Fixed Interest

-

-

10.0%

0-20%

 Cash

-

-

-

-

 Property2
2

2

Accumulation Plan and Beneficiary Account
To provide a rate of return of 4.5% p.a after fees
and taxes above the rate of inflation over a
10 year period.3

Accumulation Plan and Beneficiary Account
To provide a rate of return of 4.5% p.a after fees
and taxes above the rate of inflation over a
7 year period.3

Income Streams
To provide a rate of return of 5.0% p.a (after fees)
above the rate of inflation over a 10 year period.3

Income Streams
To provide a rate of return of 5.0% p.a (after fees)
above the rate of inflation over a 7 year period.3

Risk level4

6 - High

6 - High

Risk of negative return4

4 to less than 6 over any 20 year period

4 to less than 6 over any 20 year period

Objective

3

Performance5
Period

Accumulation
Plan %

Beneficiary
Account %

Income
Streams %

Accumulation
Plan %

Beneficiary
Account %

Income
Streams %

1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017

14.59

14.59

16.63

11.62

11.62

13.31

1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

-0.03

-0.03

0.10

2.90

2.90

3.26

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

12.13

12.13

13.98

9.53

9.53

10.67

1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014

17.35

17.35

19.67

13.32

13.32

15.07

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013

23.13

23.13

27.95

16.13

16.13

18.52

5 - year compound average p.a

13.17

13.17

15.30

10.61

10.61

12.05

10 - year compound average p.a

4.67

4.59

5.17

-

-

-
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Growth

Balanced

(default option from 01/07/09)

Strategic Asset
Allocation

Asset Allocation
Ranges

Strategic Asset
Allocation

Asset Allocation
Ranges

16.0%

5-25%

11.0%

5-20%

23.5%

10-35%

16.0%

5-25%

10.0%

5-15%

10.0%

5-15%

8.5%

0-15%

5.5%

0-10%

8.0%

0-15%

7.5%

0-15%

12.5%

0-20%

12.5%

0-20%

17.5%

0-40%

25.0%

5-60%

4.0%

0-15%

12.5%

0-25%

Accumulation Plan and Beneficiary Account
To provide a rate of return of 4.0% p.a after fees
and taxes above the rate of inflation over a
5 year period.3

Accumulation Plan and Beneficiary Account
To provide a rate of return of 3.0% p.a after fees
and taxes above the rate of inflation over a
5 year period.3

Income Streams
To provide a rate of return of 4.5% p.a (after fees)
above the rate of inflation over a 5 year period.3

Income Streams
To provide a rate of return of 3.5% p.a (after fees)
above the rate of inflation over a 5 year period.3

5 - Medium to high

4 - Medium

3 to less than 4 over any 20 year period

2 to less than 3 over any 20 year period

Accumulation
Plan %

Beneficiary
Account %

Income
Streams %

Accumulation
Plan %

Beneficiary
Account %

Income
Streams %

9.65

9.65

11.08

7.46

7.46

8.59

2.53

2.53

2.86

2.85

2.85

3.28

8.24

8.24

9.29

6.56

6.56

7.41

12.20

12.20

13.82

9.17

9.17

10.46

14.13

14.13

16.44

10.13

10.13

11.73

9.28

9.28

10.60

7.20

7.20

8.26

5.45

5.37

6.10

4.93

4.86

5.57

Notes
Crediting rates for Beneficiary Account
and Income Streams do not include
administration fees, as these are now
deducted directly from the account
balance. This change has also been
reflected in the 10-year compound
average rates, i.e. the long term rates
show 5 years without administration
fees and the previous years with
administration fees included.
1. Overseas Shares uses a 50% strategic
currency hedge ratio.
2. International exposure is hedged at
100% of foreign currency exposure.
3. The investment objectives are not a
promise or guarantee of any particular
benefit. They represent a benchmark
against which the Board monitors the
performance of the investments in
the Accumulation Plan, Beneficiary
Account and Income Stream.
4. The standard risk measure is based on
industry guidance to allow members
to compare investment options that
are expected to deliver a similar
number of negative annual returns
over any 20 year period. The standard
risk measure is not a complete
assessment of all forms of investment
risk, for instance it does not detail what
the size of a negative return could be
or the potential for a positive return
to be less than a member may require
to meet their objectives. Further, it
does not take into account the impact
of administration fees and tax on
the likelihood of a negative return.
Members should still ensure they
are comfortable with the risks and
potential losses associated with their
chosen investment option/s.
5. Past performance is not a reliable
indicator of future performance and
should not be relied upon for making
investment decisions.
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Asset allocation
and performance

Conservative

Defensive

Strategic asset allocation

Asset class

Strategic Asset
Allocation

Asset Allocation
Ranges

Strategic Asset
Allocation

Asset Allocation
Ranges

 Australian Shares

6.0%

0-15%

3.0%

0-10%

 Overseas Shares1

9.0%

0-15%

4.0%

0-10%

 Property2

7.5%

2.5-12.5%

3.0%

0-10%

3.0%

0-10%

5.0%

0-10%

 Alternative Strategies2

3.0%

0-6%

 Multi-asset Strategies

5.5%

0-10%

 Infrastructure

2

-

-

2.0%

0-10%

 Fixed Interest

20.5%

10-40%

15.0%

0-40%

 Cash

43.5%

30-60%

70.0%

50-90%

2

Accumulation Plan and Beneficiary Account
To provide a rate of return of 2% p.a after fees
and taxes above the rate of inflation over a
3 year period.3

Accumulation Plan and Beneficiary Account
To provide a rate of return of 1% p.a after fees
and taxes above the rate of inflation over a
1 year period.3

Income Streams
To provide a rate of return of 2.5% p.a (after fees)
above the rate of inflation over a 3 year period.3

Income Streams
To provide a rate of return of 1.5% p.a (after fees)
above the rate of inflation over a 1 year period.3

Risk level4

3 - Low to medium

1 - Very low

Risk of negative return4

1 to less than 2 over any 20 year period

Less than 0.5 over any 20 year period

Objective3

Performance5
Period

Accumulation
Plan %

Beneficiary
Account %

Income
Streams %

Accumulation
Plan %

Beneficiary
Account %

Income
Streams %

1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017

4.86

4.86

5.63

2.92

2.92

3.42

1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016

3.12

3.12

3.64

2.75

2.75

3.24

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

5.03

5.03

5.74

3.54

3.54

4.11

1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014

6.74

6.74

7.67

4.46

4.46

5.12

1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013

7.46

7.46

8.71

5.06

5.06

5.95

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

5.51

5.51

6.25

4.91

4.91

5.57

5 - year compound average p.a

5.43

5.43

6.26

3.74

3.74

4.36

10 - year compound average p.a

4.63

4.56

5.25

-

-

-
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Cash

Term Deposits

Strategic Asset
Allocation

Asset Allocation
Ranges

Strategic Asset
Allocation

Asset Allocation
Ranges

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

100.0%

100%

100.0%

100%

Accumulation Plan and Beneficiary Account
To provide a return (after fees) equivalent or higher
than the RBA cash rate.3
Income Streams
To provide a return (after fees) equivalent or higher
than the RBA cash rate.3

Accumulation Plan and Beneficiary Account
To provide an overall return (after fees) comparable
to the RBA cash rate as well as rates of return
competitive to those offered directly by major banks.3
Income Streams
To provide an overall return comparable to the RBA
cash rate as well as rates of return competitive to
those offered directly by major banks.3

1 - Very low

1 - Very low

Less than 0.5 over in 20 years

Less than 0.5 over in 20 years

Accumulation
Plan %

Beneficiary
Account %

Income
Streams %

1.72

1.72

2.02

1.98

1.98

2.33

2.25

2.25

2.65

2.47

2.47

2.89

3.13

3.13

3.67

4.04

4.04

4.69

2.31

2.31

2.71

-

-

-

Accumulation
Plan %

Beneficiary
Account %

Income
Streams %

Term deposit rates vary depending
on when investments are made.
For historical term deposit rates visit
esssuper.com.au/termdeposits

Notes
Crediting rates for Beneficiary Account
and Income Streams do not include
administration fees, as these are now
deducted directly from the account
balance. This change has also been
reflected in the 10-year compound
average rates, i.e. the long term rates
show 5 years without administration
fees and the previous years with
administration fees included.
1. Overseas Shares uses a 50% strategic
currency hedge ratio.
2. International exposure is hedged at
100% of foreign currency exposure.
3. The investment objectives are not a
promise or guarantee of any particular
benefit. They represent a benchmark
against which the Board monitors the
performance of the investments in
the Accumulation Plan, Beneficiary
Account and Income Stream.
4. The standard risk measure is based on
industry guidance to allow members
to compare investment options that
are expected to deliver a similar
number of negative annual returns
over any 20 year period. The standard
risk measure is not a complete
assessment of all forms of investment
risk, for instance it does not detail what
the size of a negative return could be
or the potential for a positive return
to be less than a member may require
to meet their objectives. Further, it
does not take into account the impact
of administration fees and tax on
the likelihood of a negative return.
Members should still ensure they
are comfortable with the risks and
potential losses associated with their
chosen investment option/s.
5. Past performance is not a reliable
indicator of future performance and
should not be relied upon for making
investment decisions.
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Investment managers
The following table lists the investment managers used for all the defined benefit and accumulation funds ESSSuper administers.
Aberdeen Asset Management

Hastings Funds Management

Acorn Capital

Helmsman

Advent International Corporation

Hummer Winblad

American Securities

Hyperion

AMP Capital

IFM Investors

Antin Infrastructure Partners

Investa Property Group

AQR Capital Management

Investec

Archer Capital

Ironbridge Capital

Ardevora

ISPT Fund Management

Ares Management

JCP Investment Partners

Arrowstreet Capital

K2 Advisors Diversity Fund

Artisan Partners

Lazard Asset Management

Bain Capital

Lend Lease

BlackRock

Loomis Sayles

Black River

LSV

BlueCrest

Macquarie Funds Management

Bridgewater Associates

Magellan Financial Group

BTIM

Merlon Capital Partners

Cantab Capital Partners

MFS Investment Management

Causeway Capital Management

Nephila Capital

Cerberus

Nikko

Charter Hall Group

North Haven

CHAMP Private Equity

Oaktree Capital Management

Citadel

Odey

Colchester Global Investors

Olivant Advisers

Colonial First State

Orbis Investment Management

Coopers Investors

Pacific Investment Management Company

Copper Rock Capital Partners

Propel Investments

Crescent Capital Partners

Queensland Investment Corporation

D.E Shaw & Co.

Quadrant Private Equity

Dexus Property Group

Resolution Capital

Dimensional Fund Advisors

Schroder Investment Management

Elliott International Capital Advisors

Securis Investment Partners

Epoch Investment Partners

Silver Creek Capital Management

Eureka Funds Management

SL Capital Partners

Fermat Capital Management

Starfish Ventures

Fortress Investor Group

State Street Global Advisors

Franklin Templeton

Stone Harbor Investment Partners

Fulcrum Capital Partners

T. Rowe Price

Garda Capital Group

TPG

Genesis Investment Management

UBS Global Asset Management

Global Infrastructure Partners

Valad Property Group

Goldentree Capital

Veritas Asset Management

Goldman Sachs Asset Management

Victorian Funds Management Corporation

GPT Group

Vinva Investment Management

Greencape Capital

Wasatch Funds
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Summary financial results
Five year financial summary
Table 1: Summary statement of change in net assets for the year ended 30 June
2017
$mil

2016
$mil

2015
$mil

2014
$mil

2013
$mil

Total revenue

6,274

3,854

5,398

5,826

5,214

Total expenses

4,739

3,477

4,276

4,623

4,016

Total change in net assets

1,535

377

1,122

1,203

1,198

2017
$mil

2016
$mil

2015
$mil

2014
$mil

2013
$mil

27,358

25,954

25,818

25,524

19,291

344

1,400

1,860

3,616

204

27,014

24,554

23,958

21,908

19,087

30,178

29,896

30,083

29,845

28,906

5,194

4,551

4,145

3,455

2,776

35,372

34,447

34,228

33,300

31,682

(8,358)

(9,893)

(10,270)

(11,392)

(12,595)

Revenue

Table 2: Summary statement of net assets for the year ended 30 June

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets available to pay benefits
Less
Liability for accrued benefits
Defined benefits
Accumulation

Unfunded liability

Table 2 above discloses all Liability for accrued benefits for the Fund, covering members in the defined benefit and in the accumulation fund.
The $27,014 million in net assets available to pay member benefits at 30 June 2017 was allocated as follows:
State Superannuation Fund members

12,780 million

ESSS Defined Benefit Fund members

9,040 million

Accumulation Plan members

2,649 million

Beneficiary Account/Income Stream

2,545 million
27,014 million

¢¢

Net assets available to pay benefits position has improved by 10.0% from prior year.

¢¢

Overall funding position increased by 15.5% from prior year.

¢¢

Market value of investments increased $1,792m as reflected in the Operating Statement.

¢¢

Administration costs for the Fund are in line with budgetary expectations.
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Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme
Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2017
Note

2017
$’000

2016
$’000
Restated
(Note 2(o))

Assets
Investments

19, 20

Cash and cash equivalents

2,292,947

2,137,448

Australian equities

8,367,731

7,155,852

International equities

5,017,508

4,537,205

Fixed income securities

4,375,875

4,041,871

Property

2,045,423

2,044,234

Alternatives

2,046,696

1,843,304

Infrastructure

1,580,796

1,133,897

Private equity

158,459

514,819

Life insurance policies

307,890

291,590

Multi asset strategies

611,848

501,329

Derivative assets

478,348

1,462,603

20,090

16,052

381

225,875

Other assets
Contributions receivable
Unsettled investment trades receivable
Other receivables

51,888

48,445

Plant and equipment

3, 18(g)
2(t), 5

405

-

Intangible assets

2(u), 6

1,674

-

27,357,959

25,954,524

140,211

67,429

11,637

1,764

Total assets
Liabilities
Payables

4,18(f )

Unsettled investment trades payable
Current tax liabilities

8(c)

19,887

13,035

Deferred tax liabilities

8(d)

88,254

56,527

Derivative liabilities

20, 21(d)

80,003

1,261,310

Employee benefits

9, 2(v)

Total liabilities
Net assets available for member benefits

11(a)

3,791

-

343,783

1,400,065

27,014,176

24,554,459

(5,193,836)

(4,551,824)

(30,178,000)

(29,896,000)

Members benefits
Accrued liabilities – Accumulation
Accrued liabilities – Defined benefits
Liability for accrued benefits

11(b)

(35,371,836)

(34,447,824)

Unfunded liability

11(a)

(8,357,660)

(9,893,365)

7, 2(n)

30,330

-

Equity
Operational risk reserve
Unfunded defined benefit liability

(8,387,990)

(9,893,365)

Total equity

(8,357,660)

(9,893,365)

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Operating Statement for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note

2017
$’000

2016
$’000
Restated
(Note 2(o))

Net investment revenue
Interest revenue

15

Distributions and dividends
Changes in fair value

19

Income from the transfer of net assets from the Board free of charge

96,018

105,396

949,093

1,097,211

1,792,494

(283,310)

2,837,605

919,297

30,301

-

Expenses
Investment expenses

13

90,587

88,778

Administration cost

14

33,250

32,751

123,837

121,529

2,744,069

797,768

Net benefit allocated to accumulation members

(400,396)

(127,540)

Net benefit allocated to defined benefit members

(847,718)

(1,039,796)

1,495,955

(369,568)

39,721

43,014

1,535,676

(326,554)

Operating result

Operating result before income tax
Income tax benefit

8(b)

Operating result after income tax

The Operating Statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Member Benefits for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note

Accumulation Benefits
$’000

Defined Benefits
$’000

Total
$’000

4,551,824

29,896,000

34,447,824

Employer

114,922

1,770,622

1,885,544

Member

189,005

34,610

223,615

1,296,804

21

1,296,825

(17,332)

(248,500)

(265,832)

1,583,399

1,556,753

3,140,152

(1,338,258)

(2,121,760)

(3,460,018)

(2,379)

-

(2,379)

1,663

-

1,663

Benefits allocated to members’ accounts,
net investment income

400,396

847,718

1,248,114

Net change in defined benefit members’
accrued benefits

-

(3,491)

(3,491)

(2,809)

2,780

(29)

Closing balance as at 30 June 2017

5,193,836

30,178,000

35,371,836

Opening balance as at 1 July 2015

4,144,597

29,380,000

33,524,597

Employer

104,243

1,725,262

1,829,505

Member

227,505

39,545

267,050

Transfer from other superannuation funds

837,723

149

837,872

(16,359)

(240,496)

(256,855)

1,153,112

1,524,460

2,677,572

(871,677)

(2,046,745)

(2,918,422)

(2,749)

-

(2,749)

1,001

-

1,001

Benefits allocated to members’ accounts,
net investment income

127,540

1,039,796

1,167,336

Net change in defined benefit members’
accrued benefits

-

(1,511)

(1,511)

4,551,824

29,896,000

34,447,824

Opening balance as at 1 July 2016
Contributions

Transfer from other superannuation funds
Income tax on contributions

8(b)

Net after-tax contributions
Benefit payments
Insurance premiums charged to members’ accounts
Death and disability benefits credited
to members’ accounts

Reserves transferred to/(from) members
Operational risk reserve

Contributions

Income tax on contributions
Net after-tax contributions
Benefit payments
Insurance premiums charged to members’ accounts
Death and disability benefits credited
to members’ accounts

Closing balance as at 30 June 2016

8(b)

The Statement of Changes in Member Benefits is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Reserves for the year ended 30 June 2017
Operational
risk reserve
$’000

Unfunded Defined
Benefits liability
$’000

Total Equity
$’000

-

(9,893,365)

(9,893,365)

Net transfers from accumulation members’ accounts

2,809

-

2,809

Net transfers to defined benefits members’ accounts

(2,780)

-

(2,780)

Operating result

30,301

1,505,375

1,535,676

Closing balance as at 30 June 2017

30,330

(8,387,990)

(8,357,660)

Opening balances as at 1 July 2015

-

(9,566,811)

(9,566,811)

Net transfers (to)/from accumulation members’ accounts

-

-

-

Net transfers (to)/from defined benefits members’ accounts

-

-

-

Operating result

-

(326,554)

(326,554)

Closing balance as at 30 June 2016

-

(9,893,365)

(9,893,365)

Opening balances as at 1 July 2016

The Statement of Changes in Reserves is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note

2017
$’000

2016
$’000
Restated
(Note 2(o))

Cash flows from operating activities
Transfer of funds from the Board

28,300

-

Interest received

96,018

105,396

Distributions and dividends received

949,093

1,097,220

Investment expenses paid

(88,073)

(84,823)

General administration expenses paid

(28,282)

(34,811)

(187,531)

(255,201)

769,525

827,781

9,078,590

7,639,843

(9,695,927)

(8,174,409)

Purchase of plant and equipment

(529)

-

Disposal of plant and equipment

35

-

(1,707)

-

(619,538)

(534,566)

1,881,506

1,837,462

222,899

267,100

1,296,825

837,872

Benefits paid - pensions

(2,202,192)

(1,559,838)

Benefits paid - lump sum

(1,193,526)

(1,411,985)

5,512

(29,389)

155,499

263,826

At the beginning of the year

2,137,448

1,873,622

At the end of the year

2,292,947

2,137,448

Income tax paid
Net cash inflows from operating activities

16

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments
Payments for investments

Purchase of computer software
Net cash outflows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Employer contributions
Member contributions
Transfers from other superannuation funds

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities
Net increase in cash held
Cash and cash equivalents

The Statement of Cash Flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
1. Operations of the Fund
The Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme (the “Fund”)
was established under the Emergency Services Superannuation
Act 1986 (ESS Act) for the purpose of providing superannuation
benefits for Victorian emergency services employees. It is a
superannuation scheme domiciled in Australia. The principal
place of business of the Fund is 140 William Street, Melbourne
VIC 3000.
The trustee and administrator of the Fund was the Emergency
Services Superannuation Board (the Board) prior to July 2016.
The Board operates under its business name of ESSSuper
(Emergency Services and State Super). At its 9 June 2016 meeting
the Board approved a recommendation from Management
that the Board and Fund restructure their operations in order
to optimise the functionality of each entity. Therefore, as at
1 July 2016, the Fund has become responsible for its own
administration. The Board ceased it’s role as administrator and
instead provides trustee related services only. The operating
reserve held within the Board was transferred to the Fund. All
administration costs associated with the operating of the Fund
are incurred by the Fund. Any expenditure incurred by the Board
is reimbursed by the Fund.
There were no legislative amendments required for this change
and the Fund and Board still meet the requirements of the ESS Act.
The Superannuation Legislation (Governance Reform) Act 2005 was
effected on 1 December 2005 when the State Superannuation
Fund (SSF) was closed and all assets and liabilities of SSF were
transferred to the Fund. The Fund encompasses the following
defined benefit funds:
¢¢

the ESSS Defined Benefit Fund, which is open to new
members and is a fully funded fund;

¢¢

the SSF are closed funds that are partially funded and are
made up of the following membership categories:
• the Original Scheme closed to new members on 30 June 1975;
• the Revised Scheme closed to new members on 1 July 1988;
• the State Employees Retirement Benefits Scheme (SERB)
closed to new members on 1 July 1988;

¢¢

the Beneficiary Account - In accordance with Section 21J of the
ESS Act, former emergency services contributors may elect to
transfer their lump sum benefit into the Beneficiary Account;

¢¢

the Income Streams - In accordance with Sections 21J(3) and
21K(3) of the ESS Act, the balance of a Beneficiary Account may be
paid to a former contributor in the form of an Income Stream; and

¢¢

the Accumulation Plan - In accordance with Section 21B of the
ESS Act, employees of participating employers may become
members of the Accumulation Plan. A member may elect to
contribute to the Accumulation Plan. Employers contribute
for non-operational members under the Commonwealth
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.

Defined benefit employer contributions are made at rates
recommended by the Actuary and the Board to ensure that current
benefits are fully funded. Employee contributions are made in
accordance with the provision of the ESS Act. Benefits of defined
benefit members are calculated by way of formula as defined in the
ESS Act. Benefits of members in the Accumulation Plan are equal
to member’s account balances which are credited each year with
contributions and their proportional share of the net investment
income, and debited with expenses and income tax of the Fund.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation, statement of compliance and use of
judgements and estimates
The financial report is a general purpose financial report which
has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards (AAS), in particular Australian Accounting Standard
AASB 1056 ‘Superannuation Entities’ (AASB 1056), Australian
Accounting Interpretations, Standing Directions 5.2 of the
Financial Management Act 1994 and relevant Financial Reporting
Directions (FRDs) issued by the Minister for Finance and
distributed by the Department of Treasury and Finance.
The Trustee of the Fund has elected to adopt AASB 1056 which
has resulted in:
¢¢

Changes to the presentation format of the financial statement:

¢¢

Changes to the measurement of assets and liabilities from
‘net market value’ to ‘fair value’, excluding members liabilities
and tax liabilities;

¢¢

Additional disclosure requirements for assets and liabilities held
at fair value as required by AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement;

¢¢

Member benefits recognised as liabilities rather than equity; and

¢¢

Contributions, rollovers and other inward transfers and
benefits paid to members which are not in the nature of
income or expenses, and are presented in the statement of
changes in member benefits.

• the New Scheme closed to new members on 31 December
1993;
• the Transport Scheme closed to new members on
31 December 1993;
• certain members of the Melbourne Water Corporation
Employees’ Superannuation Scheme (MWCESS);
• Port of Melbourne Authority Superannuation Scheme that
transferred to the SSF during the year ended 30 June 1997; and
• The Parliamentary Contributory Superannuation Fund that
transferred to the SSF on 1 April 2014.
In addition, the Fund includes the following accumulation
products which are open to all members:

In accordance with the transitional provision of AASB 1056, the
Fund has applied the new Accounting Standard prospectively from
the start of the comparative period. The adoption of AASB 1056 has
had an impact on the financial statement which has been disclosed
in Note 2(o).
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Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 24 August 2017. The financial statements have been prepared
on the basis required by AASB 1056, which provides specific measurement requirements for assets, liabilities and accrued benefits.
To the extent that they do not conflict with AASB 1056, other AAS have been applied in the preparation of the financial statements.
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with AAS, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires Management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund’s accounting policies. The areas needing a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed
in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
The key estimates and assumptions that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the value of assets and liabilities are:
¢¢

Employee benefits (refer Note 9);

¢¢

Valuation of investments and derivatives (refer Notes 20 and 21); and

¢¢

Valuation of accrued benefits which has been actuarially determined (refer Notes 11 and 22).

The financial assets have been measured on a fair value basis.
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts
of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.
The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements whereby assets, liabilities, equity,
income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
(b) Accounting standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the following standards which are expected to be relevant to the Fund were in issue
but not yet effective. The Board has chosen not to adopt these new standards early. The Board anticipates that the adoption of these
Standards will have no material impact on the financial report of the Fund.
AASB Amendment / Standard

Title

Effective date

30 June 2017
Year End applicability

AASB 2016-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses

1 January 2017

Optional

AASB 2016-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Disclosure Initiative:
Amendments to AASB 107

1 January 2017

Optional

AASB 2016-4

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Recoverable Amount of
Non-Cash-Generating Specialised Assets
of Not-for-Profit Entities

1 January 2017

Optional

ASB 2017-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Further Annual
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle

1 January 2017

Optional

AASB 9 and the relevant
amending standards

Financial Instruments

1 January 2018

Optional

AASB 15 and the relevant
amending standards

Revenue from contracts with customers

1 January 2018

Optional

AASB Interpretation 22

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

1 January 2019

Optional

AASB 2017-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Transfer of Investment
Property, Annual Improvements 20142016 Cycle and Other Amendments

1 January 2019

Optional

AASB 16

Leases

1 January 2019

Optional
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(c) Investments and derivatives
Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date
where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned and are initially
measured at fair value. Investments and derivatives are included
in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value as at the
reporting date with gains and losses arising from changes in net
market value recorded in the Operating Statement in the periods
in which they occur. Derivatives are measured at fair value in
accordance with AASB 1056.
Fair values have been determined as follows:
¢¢

Short term deposits: at the lower of cost and net realisable
value inclusive of accrued interest;

¢¢

Shares and units in listed entities (including listed unit
trusts), government and other fixed interest and index-linked
securities: by reference to the most verifiable source of
market prices at balance date;

¢¢

Shares and units in unlisted entities: using the advice of the
Fund’s investment managers at reporting date. The advice
may include valuations of other investments substantially
the same in nature; or discounted cash flows less estimated
realisation costs. Where other valuation models are used,
inputs will be based on a range of observable market data
and unobservable inputs;

¢¢

Investments in Life Insurance Company Statutory Funds:
using the actuarial asset share method;

¢¢

Derivative financial instruments, including financial futures
and forward exchange contracts, interest rate swaps,
exchange traded options and other options and forward rate
agreements: by reference to the most verifiable source of
market prices at balance date less an appropriate allowance for
costs expected to be incurred in realising the investment; and

¢¢

Fair value is the amount which could be expected to be
received from the disposal of an asset in an orderly market.

(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue, including interest, is recognised in accordance with
AASB 118 Revenues and is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Fund and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue
is recognised:
¢¢

Changes in fair values (realised and unrealised): recognised in
the Operating Statement in the periods in which they occur.
The changes in fair value are measured by reference to the
market price as at the prior balance date, the purchase price
where the investment was purchased during the year, the
sale value where the investment was sold during the year,
and, if held at year end, the fair value at balance date;

¢¢

Interest: control of a right to receive the interest payment.
Interest is recognised as it accrues, using the original effective
interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or
origination date; and

¢¢

Dividends and distributions: control of a right to receive the
dividend or distribution payment is the date the shares/units
are quoted ex-dividend/ex-distribution.

(e) Administration expenses
Administration expenses are incurred by the Board and the
Fund. Historically the Board recovered the expenses incurred in
administering the Fund from the Fund. Under the new structure,
effective July 2016, the Fund reimburses the Board for Trustee
costs only. All other administration expenses are now incurred
and recognised by the Fund, in the reporting period in which
they are incurred.
(f) Income tax
The Fund is an exempt public sector superannuation scheme and
as such is deemed to be a complying fund within the provisions
of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 (Cth). Accordingly, the
concessional rate of 15% is applicable.
Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income
taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit or
tax loss for the period. Current tax for current and prior periods
is recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid
(or refundable).
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Temporary differences are differences between the
tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying amount in the
Statement of Financial Position. The tax base of an asset or liability
is the amount attributed to that asset or liability for tax purposes.
In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will
be available against which deductible temporary differences
or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised. However,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities which affects neither taxable
income nor accounting profit.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period(s) when the asset and
liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Fund expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
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(g) Foreign currency

(k) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars,
which is also the functional currency of the Fund.

Revenues, expenses and assets are stated net of any applicable
GST. Where applicable, GST incurred that is not recoverable
from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO), has been recognised
as part of the expense or asset to which it applies. Receivables
and payables are stated with any applicable GST included in the
values. The amount of GST recoverable from, and payable to, the
ATO, is included as a receivable or payable in the Statement of
Financial Position. Cash flows are presented on a gross basis in
the Statement of Cash Flows. The GST components of cash flows
arising from investing activities which are recoverable from or
payable to the ATO are presented as cash flows from operating
activities as part of general administrative expenses paid.

Investments at balance date denominated in foreign currencies
have been converted to Australian dollars using the last quoted
rates of exchange at the end of the financial year. Transactions
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction.
Resulting exchange differences are included in the operating
result for the year.
(h) Benefits paid and payable
Benefits paid and payable included pensions, lump sums and
the movement in actuarially determined accrued benefits for the
year ended 30 June 2017 (refer Note 11).

(l) Liability for accrued benefits

Accounts payable are recognised as amounts to be paid in the
future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to
the Fund and are carried at nominal amounts which approximate
the fair value. Payables are normally settled within 30 days.

The liability for accrued benefits, which is mainly of a longterm nature, is actuarially measured on a triennial basis, with
yearly updates, and represents the value of the Fund’s present
obligation to pay benefits to members and other beneficiaries
at the date of the actuarial review. The liability is determined
on the basis of the present value of expected future payments,
which arise from membership of the Fund up to the date of the
actuarial review. The amount reported has been determined by
reference to expected future salary levels and by application
of a current market-based, risk-adjusted discount rate and
appropriate actuarial assumptions. The report on the latest full
actuarial investigations of the Fund, as at 30 June 2015, contains
details of the accrued benefit liability at that date. The report
also gives details of the basis used to calculate the accrued
benefit liability. The liability at 30 June 2017 has been actuarially
calculated as an update of the balance of the liability calculated
as at 30 June 2015. The next triennial review will be conducted as
at 30 June 2018 and will be completed by 31 December 2018.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

(m) Rounding off of amounts

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank,
short term deposits, money market deposits, exchange traded
futures, margin accounts and non-investment at-call funds
which are readily convertible to cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Amounts in the financial report have been rounded off to the
nearest thousand dollars unless otherwise stated.

Pensions and lump sums are accounted for on an accrual basis.
Benefits payable includes the entitlements of members who
ceased employment prior to year-end but had not been paid at
that time.
(i) Receivables and payables
Receivables are carried at nominal amounts due which
approximate fair value. Receivables are normally settled within
30 days. An allowance for uncollectible amounts is only made
where there is objective evidence that the debt may not be
collected. Interest receivables are accrued interest from cash and
cash equivalents and fixed interest securities.
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(n) Reserves
The Fund maintains an operational risk reserve to provide funds to
protect members’ interests and mitigate the impact of an adverse
event. This reserve is operated in accordance with the Fund’s
Annual Operating Reserve Policy and is held at a Fund level.

(o) Restatement of 2015/16 comparatives due to the adoption of AASB 1056
The Board has adopted AASB 1056 Superannuation Entities from 1 July 2016. The adoption of AASB 1056 has had the following impact on
the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017.
Description

2016
Published
$’000

Transition
adjustment
$’000

2016
Restated
$’000

2,361,559

224,111

2,137,448

Unsettled investment trades receivables

-

225,875

225,875

Unsettled investment trades payables

-

1,764

1,764

Accrued liabilities - accumulation

-

4,551,824

4,551,824

Accrued liabilities - defined benefits

30,580,000

684,000

29,896,000

Unfunded liability

10,577,365

684,000

9,893,365

Contribution - Employer

1,828,945

1,828,945

-

Contribution - Member

1,104,972

1,104,972

-

35,500

2,749

32,751

3,822,649

3,822,649

-

Net benefit allocated to accumulation members

-

127,540

127,540

Net benefit allocated to defined benefit members

-

1,039,796

1,039,796

213,841

256,855

(43,014)

2,097,732

224,110

1,873,622

Statement of Financial Position
Cash and cash equivalents

Operating Statement

Administration expenses
Benefits paid and payable

Income tax expense/(benefit)
Statement of Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents
At the beginning of the year
The following cash flows were in 2016 financial statements reported as
operating activities, they are now been classified as financing activities.
Employer contributions

1,837,462

1,837,462

Member contributions

267,100

267,100

Transfers from other superannuation funds

837,872

837,872

Benefit paid - pensions

1,559,838

1,559,838

Benefit paid – lump sum

1,411,985

1,411,985

These adjustments have only impacted the presentation of the comparisons and have had no impact on last year’s results.
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(p) Commitments

(u) Intangible assets

Commitments for future expenditure include operating and
capital commitments arising from contracts. These commitments
are disclosed in Note 10 and 17 at nominal value.

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets
without physical substance. They are initially recognised at cost;
subsequently those with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Costs
incurred subsequent to initial recognition are capitalised when
it is expected that additional future economic benefits will
flow to the Fund. Expenditures incurred in respect of software
development are carried forward when their future recoverability
can reasonably be regarded as assured and they will contribute
to future period revenue generation and/or cost reductions. Any
expenditures carried forward are amortised over the period in
which the Fund expects to realise the benefits. The useful life for
each major class of intangible assets is:

(q) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed by way
of a note, refer to Note 24, if quantifiable they are measured at
nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are
presented net of GST receivable or payable respectively.
(r) Events after the reporting period
Transactions are only recognised in the financial statements when
the agreement is irrevocable at or before the end of the reporting
period. Adjustments are made to amounts recognised in the
financial statements for events that occur between the end of the
reporting period and the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue if those events provide information about the
conditions which existed at the reporting date.
(s) Impairment of assets
All of the Fund’s assets are assessed annually for indications of
impairment. If there is an indication of impairment the assets
concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds
their possible recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying
value exceeds its recoverable amount the difference is written
off by a charge to the Operating Statement. It is deemed that, in
the event of the loss of an asset, the future economic benefits
arising from the use of the asset will be replaced unless a
specific decision to the contrary has been made. The recoverable
amount for most assets is measured at the higher of depreciated
replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. The recoverable
amount for assets held primarily to generate net cash inflows is
measured at the higher of the present value of future cash flows
expected to be obtained from the asset value less costs to sell.
(t) Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are recognised at fair value. Depreciation is
provided on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful
life to the Fund. Depreciation rates are reviewed annually with a
view to adjusting them to reflect the most recent assessment of the
useful life of new assets purchased by the Fund. No reliable marketbased fair value exists for plant, equipment and vehicles, therefore
in line with Financial Reporting Direction 103F, depreciated cost
represents a reasonable approximation of fair value.
Useful life 2017
Office equipment

5 years

Computer equipment

4 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

Furniture and fittings

10 years
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Useful life 2017
Superannuation administration
software

4 years

Internally generated software

5 years

Other computer software

4 years

The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for
impairment annually when the asset is not yet in use, or more
frequently when an indicator of impairment arises during the
reporting year indicating that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Intangibles with a finite life are assessed annually for
impairment indicators. If there is an indication of impairment it is
tested as to whether the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Any excess of the carrying asset over the recoverable
amount is recognised as an impairment loss.
(v) Employee benefits
Wages, salaries and annual leave
The provision for employee benefits in respect of wages, salaries
and annual leave, represents the amount which the Fund has
a present obligation to pay resulting from employees’ services
provided up to the balance date. The provision has been
calculated at discounted amounts based on expected future
wage and salary rates. Related on-costs, such as payroll tax and
work cover have been disclosed separately in accordance with
AASB 101.78(d).
Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement,
liabilities for wages, salaries and annual leave are measured at:
¢¢

nominal value-component that the Fund expects to settle
wholly within 12 months; and

¢¢

present value-component that the Fund does not expect to
settle wholly within 12 months.

Long service leave
The liability for employee benefits in respect of long service
leave represents the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made by the Fund resulting from employees’
services provided up to the balance date.

The current portion of the nominal long service leave liability reflected in the financial statements is based on staff with benefits that
have vested (such as a minimum of 7 years’ service history and staff with 10 and more years’ service history).
The non-current portion of long service leave liability is a calculation of the arising liability using salary, number of years service and
probability of reaching long service leave entitlement. This figure is discounted using the rates attaching to national government
guaranteed securities at balance date, which most closely match the terms of maturity of the related liabilities. In determining the
liability for employee benefits, consideration has been given to future increases in wage and salary rates, and the Fund’s experience
with staff turnover rates. Related on-costs have also been included in the liability.
Unconditional long service leave (LSL) is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability, even where the Fund
does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
¢¢

nominal value-component that the Fund expects to settle wholly within 12 months; and

¢¢

present value-component that the Fund does not expect to settle wholly within 12 months.

Superannuation
The Fund contributes on behalf of it’s employees to the Fund and other accumulation plans in order to satisfy entitlements of
employees. The amount charged to the Operating Statement in respect of superannuation represents the contributions made and
payable by the Fund to superannuation funds.
Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant rules of each plan. See Note 23 for further details.

3. Receivables
There are no significant terms or conditions applicable to the receivables. All amounts are expected to be recoverable in whole within
the next 12 months. No interest is charged on these receivables. No receivables are either past due or impaired and no allowances
have been made for the recoverability of these assets.

4. Payables
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

282

-

102,410

38,392

140

1,584

37,379

27,453

140,211

67,429

Benefits payable - pensions
Benefits payable - lump sums
Amount owing to the Board
Accounts payable

The timing of the payment of this year’s final pension payment fell on June 29. Last year’s payment was made on June 30, therefore no
accrual was recognised.

5. Plant and equipment
Asset Class - 2017

Opening carrying value
$’000

Disposals
$’000

Additions
$’000

Depreciation expense
$’000

Closing carrying value
$’000

Office furniture and fittings

-

(272)

297

(2)

23

Office equipment

-

(49)

51

-

2

Leasehold assets

-

(120)

120

-

-

Computer equipment

-

(595)

796

(44)

157

Motor vehicles

-

(257)

523

(43)

223

Total

-

(1,293)

1,787

(89)

405
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These assets have been classified as Category Level 3 in the Fair Value Hierarchy. Significant unobservable inputs are incorporated in
the fair value measurement such as estimation of useful life. The assets are valued using the technique of depreciated replacement
cost. There have been no transfers between levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy in respect of these assets.

6. Intangible assets
Asset Class - 2017
Computer software

Opening carrying value
$’000
		

-

Disposals
$’000

Additions
$’000

Depreciation expense
$’000

Closing carrying value
$’000

(2,295)

4,002

(33)

1,674

7. Operating reserve
The operating reserve has been created under the powers from the ESS Act.
The operating reserve within the Fund has been created to be used for the following possible purposes, namely to finance:
¢¢

appropriate action to address any adverse financial outcomes (excluding investment fluctuations) as a result of highly unlikely and
unanticipated events; and

¢¢

significant strategic projects that benefit both current and future Fund members.

Opening balance
Operating result
Net movement
Closing balance

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

-

-

30,301

-

29

-

30,330

-

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

8. Income tax
(a) Income tax expense
The aggregate amount of tax expense attributable to the financial year is as follows:
Note

Restated
(Note 2(o))
Current tax

207,768

198,031

31,728

(6,686)

(13,385)

22,496

226,111

213,841

Contribution tax

265,832

256,855

Profit from continuing operations

(39,721)

(43,014)

Aggregate income tax expense

226,111

213,841

31,728

(6,686)

31,728

(6,686)

Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Under/(over) provision provided in prior years
Total income tax expense

8(c)

Income tax expense/(benefit) is attributed to:

Deferred income tax revenue included in income tax expense comprises:
(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities
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(b) Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable
2017
$’000

2016
$’000
Restated
(Note 2(o))

Operating result before income tax

1,495,955

(369,568)

224,393

(55,435)

52,554

237,760

(181,136)

(147,339)

10,466

10,522

(132,613)

(111,018)

(26,336)

(65,510)

Under/(over) provision in prior years

(13,385)

22,496

Income tax expense/(benefit) reported in Operating Statement

(39,721)

(43,014)

Income tax expense - Contributions

265,832

256,855

Total income tax expense

226,111

213,841

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Opening balance 1 July

(13,035)

(47,709)

Income tax paid

187,531

255,201

(207,768)

(198,031)

13,385

(22,496)

(19,887)

(13,035)

Tax at the Australian tax rate of 15% (2016: 15%)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income:
Difference between accounting and tax gains
Current pension exemption
Non-deductible expenses
Imputation and foreign tax credits

(c) Current tax liabilities

Movements:

Current year's income tax expense
Over/(under) provision from previous year
Closing balance at 30 June
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(d) Deferred tax liabilities
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Unrealised capital gains

(83,825)

(52,506)

Contributions receivable

(3,013)

(6,441)

Accrued income

(1,416)

2,420

(88,254)

(56,527)

(88,254)

(56,527)

Opening balance at 1 July

(56,527)

(63,213)

Credited to the Operating Statement

(31,727)

6,686

Closing balance at 30 June

(88,254)

(56,527)

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Unconditional and expected to settle wholly within 12 months

942

-

Unconditional and expected to settle wholly after 12 months

285

-

50

-

30

-

1,930

-

91

-

3,328

-

442

-

21

-

463

-

2017
%

2016
%

Assumed rate of increase in wage and salary rates

3.81

-

Discount rate (average percentage)

2.27

-

Years

Years

13

-

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Net deferred tax position
Presented in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities
Movements:

9. Employee benefits
Liability for aggregate long service leave and annual leave including on-costs
Current – Employee benefits
Annual leave:

Annual leave on-cost
Long service leave:
Unconditional and expected to settle wholly within 12 months
Unconditional and expected to settle wholly after 12 months
Long service leave on-cost
Total current employee benefits
Non-Current – Employee benefits
Long service leave
Long service leave on-cost
Total non-current employee benefits

Settlement term (average years)
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10. Commitments
Capital commitments
At 30 June 2017 the Fund had no capital commitments (2016: Nil).
Operating lease commitments
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

2,620

-

Longer than one year and not longer than five years

11,502

-

Longer than 5 years

16,977

-

Total lease expenditure contracted for at balance date

31,099

-

Contracted but not provided for and payable
Not longer than one year

The leases place no restrictions upon the Fund with regard to additional debt and/or further lease arrangements. The amounts listed
above are inclusive of GST. The 2017 amounts relate to the commitment of the premises at 140 William Street, Melbourne, which
commenced on 1 July 2017 and expires on 30 June 2027.

11. Net assets available to pay benefits and accrued benefits
(a) Net assets available to pay benefits
30 June 2017

Accumulation
products
$’000

ESSS Defined
Benefit
$’000

State Super
Defined Benefit
$’000

Fund total
$’000

Opening balance 1 July 2016

4,551,824

8,039,879

11,962,756

24,554,459

Contributions

1,602,395

377,535

1,427,717

3,407,647

380,254

941,565

1,190,269

2,512,088

(1,340,637)

(318,979)

(1,800,402)

(3,460,018)

5,193,836

9,040,000

12,780,340

27,014,176

(5,193,836)

(6,463,000)

(23,715,000)

(35,371,836)

-

2,577,000

(10,934,660)

(8,357,660)

Accumulation
products
$’000

ESSS Defined
Benefit
$’000

State Super
Defined Benefit
$’000

Fund total
$’000

Opening balance 1 July 2015

4,144,597

7,771,476

12,041,713

23,957,786

Contributions

1,170,472

345,178

1,418,267

2,933,917

108,432

246,489

226,257

581,178

Transfers out

(871,677)

(323,264)

(1,723,481)

(2,918,422)

Closing balance 30 June 2016

4,551,824

8,039,879

11,962,756

24,554,459

(4,551,824)

(6,402,000)

(23,494,000)

(34,447,824)

-

1,637,879

(11,531,244)

(9,893,365)

Net investment earnings
Transfers out
Closing balance 30 June 2017
Accrued benefit liability
Surplus/(deficit) 30 June 2017
30 June 2016

Net investment earnings

Accrued benefit liability
Surplus / (deficit) 30 June 2016
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(b) Accrued liability as determined by Actuary
Obligations relating to member entitlement are recognised as member liabilities. Defined contribution member liabilities are
measured as the amount of member account balances as at the reporting date. Defined benefit member liabilities are determined by
the Actuary in respect of benefits, which have accrued to members and beneficiaries on the basis of the present value of expected
future payments which arise from membership of the schemes:

Liability for accrued benefits

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

(35,371,836)

(34,447,824)

In prior years, ESSSuper has not been able to provide a breakdown of the SG minimum benefits for each ESSS Defined Benefit member,
so these components were estimated by the Actuary. In 2017, ESSSuper has provided the Actuary with information that allows a more
accurate estimation of the SG minimum benefits. Consequently, the use of the estimate of the SG minimum benefits resulted in a oneoff reduction of $490m in 2017.
(c) Funding arrangements
Defined contribution employers provide contributions to the Fund during the year at 9.5% (2016 9.5%) of the gross salaries of the
employees. Defined benefit employers provide contributions to the Fund at various rates as determined by the Actuary (2017 nil
-13.5% (2016 nil – 13.5%)). Members’ contributions were made in accordance with the requirements of the Trust Deed.
(d) Changes in accrued benefits
2017
$’000

2016
$’000
Restated
(Note 2(o))

Benefits expense (per Operating Statement)
Net benefit allocated to accumulation members

400,396

127,540

Net benefit allocated to defined benefit members

847,718

1,039,796

34,447,824

33,524,597

924,012

923,227

35,371,836

34,447,824

Accrued benefits at the beginning of the year
Movement in accrued benefits - current year
Accrued benefits at the end of the year

Financial assumptions
The following financial assumptions were used in estimating the accrued benefit liability for the defined benefit funds:
2017
%

2016
%

Investment return - pension assets

8.00

8.00

Investment return - other assets

7.00

7.00

Salary growth due to inflation

4.00

4.00

Year

2.50

2.50

Long term

2.50

2.50

Price inflation

The Actuary has adopted two different investment return assumptions. One rate is used in respect of assets backing pension liabilities
(untaxed) and the second rate relates to assets backing other benefits (taxed). The rationale underlying this approach is that the
unfunded liability represents the immediate contribution that would need to be made on the valuation date to put the Fund in
a fully funded position. In order to calculate the amount of this contribution, it is necessary to consider what would occur if such
a contribution were made and, in particular, what investment return could be achieved on the Fund’s assets following this
contribution. It is this investment return which is used to discount the liabilities to arrive at the unfunded liability amount.
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12. Vested benefits
Vested benefits are not conditional upon continued membership of the Fund (or any factor other than resignation from the Fund) and
include benefits which members are entitled to receive had they terminated their Fund membership as at the reporting date (refer
Note 21(e)). These amounts are shown below:

Vested - Defined Benefits
Vested - Defined Contribution

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

31,690,000

31,439,000

5,193,836

4,551,824

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

84,653

82,397

5,934

6,381

90,587

88,778

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

13. Investment expenses

Fees paid for:
External fund manager fees
Custodian fees

14. Administration cost

Restated
(Note 2(o))
Reimbursement of administration expenditure incurred by the Board

-

32,483

Financial planning expenses

-

268

19,822

-

Trustee expenses

2,754

-

Other expenditure

10,674

-

33,250

32,751

230

240

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

3,818

4,002

92,200

101,394

96,018

105,396

Salaries and related costs

Included within:
Fees for the audit of Financial Statements, paid and/or payable to the Victorian Auditor General

15. Interest revenue

Interest from bank deposits
Interest from investments
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16. Cash flows
Reconciliation of change in net assets after income tax for the year to net cash inflow from operating activities:
2017
$’000

2016
$’000
Restated
(Note 2(o))

Change in net assets after income tax for the year

1,535,676

(326,554)

(1,792,494)

283,310

8,482

14,726

(Increase) in accounts receivable

(3,443)

(5,309)

(Increase)/decrease in contributions receivable

(4,038)

3,755

Increase/(decrease) in benefits payable

64,300

(53,403)

Increase/(decrease) in income tax provisions

38,579

(41,359)

919,550

952,615

(1,000)

-

3,791

-

122

-

769,525

827,781

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

672,686

1,927,404

(Increase)/decrease in fair value of investments (Note 19)
Increase in accounts payable

Allocations to members accounts
Loan to the Board
Increase in employee benefits
Depreciation (Note 5 & 6)
Net cash inflow from operating activities

17. Commitments for expenditure

Contracted Investment Commitments not provided for

Commitments for expenditure are future investments which the Fund has committed to purchasing.
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18. Related entity information
(a) Responsible persons
The names of persons who were responsible during the year and
up to the date of signing the financial report were:
¢¢

The Honourable Robin Scott, Minister for Finance.

The below listed Board members and their deputies:
Board members: Government Appointed
¢¢

Ms Joan Fitzpatrick, President;

¢¢

Ms Sarah Barker;

¢¢

The Honourable William Baxter (term expired 31 August
2016);

(b) Remuneration
No remuneration was paid by the Fund to Board Members.
However, the Board, a related entity, remunerates the Board
Members. The remuneration details are disclosed in the financial
report of the Board. The compensation below excludes the
salaries and benefits the portfolio Minister receives. The Minister’s
remuneration and allowances are set by the Parliamentary
Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968 and are reported within
the Department of Parliamentary Services Financial report.
The following Board Members and Deputy Members are
members of the Fund:
Board Members: Government Appointed
¢¢

Mr Douglas Kearsley; and
Mr Paul Mulraney.

¢¢

Mr Douglas Kearsley (appointed 16 August 2016);

¢¢

¢¢

Ms Elizabeth Flynn (term expired 28 May 2017 and
reappointed 30 May 2017);

Board Members: Member Elected

¢¢

Mr Paul Mulraney (appointed 18 October 2016); and

¢¢

Ms Susan Pelka.

Board Members: Member Elected

¢¢

Mr Colin Birch;

¢¢

Mr Alex Gagachef;

¢¢

Mr Dean Glare;

¢¢

Mr Adam Gullo;

¢¢

Mr Colin Birch (appointed 11 February 2017);

¢¢

Mr Michael Stephenson; and

¢¢

Mr Alex Gagachef;

¢¢

Ms Angela Stringer.

¢¢

Mr Dean Glare;

¢¢

Mr Adam Gullo;

¢¢

Mr Michael Stephenson;

¢¢

Ms Angela Stringer; and

¢¢

Mr Phillip Wilson (retired 10 February 2017).

Deputy Members: Government Appointed
¢¢

Mr Brian Frazer (appointed 15 February 2017);

¢¢

Ms Dawn Oldham (appointed 15 February 2017); and

¢¢

Ms Jacqui Pirone (appointed 15 February 2017).

Deputy Members: Member Elected

Deputy Members: Government Appointed
¢¢

Mr Brian Frazer.

Deputy Members: Member Elected
¢¢

Ms Carolyn Clancy;

¢¢

Mr Carl Luke; and

¢¢

Mr Christopher Perry.

Chief Executive Officer:
¢¢

Mr Mark Puli.

The number of executives and the total remuneration paid or
payable during the year are detailed below.

¢¢

Ms Carolyn Clancy, Deputy for Ms Angela Stringer;

¢¢

Mr Wayne Johnston, Deputy for Mr Dean Glare;

¢¢

Mr Carl Luke, Deputy for Mr Michael Stephenson;

¢¢

Mr Christopher Perry, Deputy for Mr Alex Gagachef; and

Short-term benefits

¢¢

Deputy for Mr Colin Birch and Deputy for Mr Adam Gullo vacant

Post-employment benefits

Chief Executive Officer:
¢¢

Mr Mark Puli.

2017
$’000
1,472
128

Other long-term benefits

27

Termination benefits

75
1,702

Total remuneration
Total number of executives

9

Annualised Employee Equivalent (AEE)
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(c) Retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid by the Fund to Board Members in their capacity as Board Members.
(d) Loans and borrowings
No loans were provided by the Fund to Board Members.
The Fund has an unused overdraft facility of $65m which is unsecured.
(e) Transactions with responsible persons and related entities
The aggregate amounts brought to account in respect of the following types of transactions and each class of related entity were as follows:
Transaction Type

Nature and terms
and conditions

Other related entity

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Fund administration fees

Cost recovery basis

The Board

-

31,166

Trustee administration expenses

Cost recovery basis

The Board

2,754

-

Investment management fees

Cost recovery basis

The Board

-

1,317

2,754

32,483

During the year the staff of the Fund who are members of the Fund received an administration fee rebate of $22k (2016 $18k).
(f) Amounts payable to other related entities

Emergency Services Superannuation Board

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

140

1,584

Amounts payable to related entities at balance date are disclosed in Note 4. This represents the outstanding fees payable to the Board
for Trustee administration expenditure.
(g) Amounts receivable from other related entities

Emergency Services Superannuation Board

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

2,998

-

Amounts receivable from related entities at balance date are disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position. This represents a loan
payable by the Board, which is interest free.
(h) Other transactions
During the year the State Government made Section 90(2) contributions of $1,033m (2016: $1,000m).
Other than the items disclosed, related transactions and loans requiring disclosure under the directions of the Minister for Finance
have been considered and there are no matters to report.
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19. Changes in fair value in investments
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

569

(342)

1,078,886

(1,393,774)

97,353

690,767

(38,054)

95,609

29,902

75,204

3,331

11,097

43,681

15,004

(67,566)

145,151

Multi asset strategies

17,000

(7,297)

Alternatives

56,448

(28,560)

(42)

(587)

1,221,508

(397,728)

897

(465,223)

Australian equities

198,936

1,536,582

International equities

126,958

(1,018,656)

Fixed income securities

18,937

12,190

Infrastructure

34,208

4,120

4,655

(3,903)

Private equity

(33,098)

4,575

Property

141,442

6,415

2,330

(1,005)

Alternatives

74,491

36,413

Derivatives

1,230

2,910

570,986

114,418

1,792,494

(283,310)

Investments held at the reporting date (unrealised):
Cash and cash equivalents
Australian equities
International equities
Fixed income securities
Infrastructure
Life insurance policies
Private equity
Property

Derivatives

Investments sold during the year (realised):
Cash and cash equivalents

Life insurance policies

Multi asset strategies

Total

ESSSuper Annual Report 2017

47

Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

20. Investments
As required by a Victorian Order in Council and Section 20 of
the Borrowing and Investment Powers Act 1987, investment
responsibilities for the defined benefit pools transferred to the
Victorian Funds Management Corporation (VFMC) on 1 July 2006.
However, the Board remains responsible for setting investment
objectives for the defined benefit pools.
At 30 June 2017, the investments of the Fund were held in three pools:
¢¢

investments relating to Accumulation Plan
(governed by the ESS Act);

¢¢

investments relating to the ESSS Defined Benefit Fund
(governed by the ESS Act); and

¢¢

investments relating to the State Superannuation Fund
(governed by the State Superannuation Act 1988).

Accumulation plan members’ funds
The Board determines the investment objectives and strategy for
the accumulation plan.
Willis Towers Watson is the investment advisor to the accumulation
plan assets including advice on investment objectives, strategy,
advisory services and high level portfolio construction. The
implementation is undertaken internally by the Board’s investment
team and the Board retains full responsibility for the investment of
accumulation plan assets.
Each investment manager is required to invest the assets under
it’s management in accordance with the terms of a written
investment mandate.
The internal investment team obtains regular reports from each
investment manager on the nature of the investments made on
behalf of the accumulation plan funds, on the associated risks
and the performance against an agreed benchmark.
Such reports include receipt of formal Risk Management
Statements as required under the Board’s contracts with each
investment manager as part of its control procedures. In turn
both Willis Towers Watson and the internal management team
report to the Investment Committee at its quarterly meeting on
all relevant and material investment matters.
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ESSS Defined Benefit Fund and State Superannuation Fund
members’ funds
The Board determines the investment objectives for the defined
benefit funds.
VFMC is the appointed fund manager and is responsible for
determining and implementing the investment strategy for the
defined benefit funds. VFMC evaluates and selects a panel of
investment managers to invest the assets of the defined benefit
funds across various asset classes.
Each investment manager is required to invest the assets under
its management in accordance with the terms of a written
investment mandate.
VFMC obtains regular reports from each investment manager
on the nature of the investments made on behalf of the
Fund, on the associated risks and the performance against an
agreed benchmark. Such reports include receipt of formal Risk
Management Statements as required under VFMC’s contracts
with each investment manager as part of its control procedures.
In turn VFMC reports to the Investment Committee at its quarterly
meeting on all relevant and material investment matters.

21. Financial risk management
(a) Objectives, strategies, policies and processes
The assets of the Fund principally consist of financial instruments
which comprise listed and unlisted equities, fixed term deposits,
cash, listed and unlisted property and infrastructure trusts,
derivative contracts and other unitised investments. VFMC, in
consultation with the Board, has determined that these types of
investments are appropriate for the Fund and are in accordance
with the requirements of the Borrowing and Investment Powers
Act 1987 and the investment guidelines contained in the
Prudential Statement issued by the Victorian Treasurer.
The Board has established an Investment Committee that
receives quarterly risk management reports from VFMC and
Willis Towers Watson in relation to Defined Benefit assets
and Accumulation assets respectively, as well as internal
management reports. The Investment Committee reports to the
Board on its activities. Divergence from target asset allocations
and the composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Fund’s
investment team on a daily basis. The investment team work
within the parameters of the Investment Governance Framework
approved by the Board.

The Board’s Governance, Risk and Compliance Committee oversees
the process used by management to monitor compliance with
the Fund’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to
the risks faced by the Fund. The Governance, Risk and Compliance
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit.
Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Governance, Risk and Compliance Committee.
The Fund’s investing activities expose it to market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Fund uses different methods to measure
different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods
include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate, foreign
exchange and other price risks, and ratings analysis for credit risk.
As part of its risk management strategy, the Fund uses derivatives
and other investments, including share price and bond futures,
swaps and forward currency contracts, to manage exposures
resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign currencies, equity
price risks, and exposures arising from forecast transactions.
NAB Asset Servicing and State Street are the master custodians
on behalf of the Fund and as such provide services including
physical custody and safekeeping of assets, settlement of
trades, collection of dividends and accounting for investment
transactions for the Fund.
(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: price risk, foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk. Market risk is managed and
monitored using sensitivity analysis, and minimised by ensuring
that all investment activities are undertaken in accordance with
established mandates and investment strategies. This includes
managing and controlling risk exposures, within acceptable
parameters while optimising investment returns.

The investment managers, VFMC and the internal investment
team mitigate this price risk through diversification and a careful
selection of securities and other financial instruments within
specified limits set by the Board. The Fund’s overall market
positions are monitored on a daily basis by VFMC and the internal
investment team and are reviewed on a quarterly basis by the
Investment Committee.
Short sales made by the Fund involve certain risks and special
considerations. Possible losses from short sales differ from losses
that could be incurred from a purchase of a security, because
losses from short sales may be unlimited, whereas losses from
purchases cannot exceed the total amount invested. At 30 June
2017, if the equity prices had increased/decreased by 10% (2016:
10%) with all other variables held constant, this would have
increased/(decreased) net assets attributable to members by
approximately $0.458m/($0.458m) (2016: $1,169m/($1,169m)).
(ii) Foreign exchange risk
The foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund holds assets
denominated in currencies other than the Australian dollar, its
functional currency. It is therefore exposed to foreign exchange
risk, as the value of the securities denominated in other
currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates.
The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis.
In accordance with the Fund’s policy, VFMC and the internal
investment team monitor the Fund’s currency position on a daily
basis, and the Investment Committee reviews it on a quarterly
basis. The foreign exchange risk disclosures have been prepared
on the basis of the Fund’s direct investment and not on a lookthrough basis for investments held indirectly through unit trusts.
Consequently the disclosure of currency risk in this note may not
represent the true currency risk profile of the Fund where the
unit trust has significant investments in other trusts which also
have exposure to the currency markets.

(i) Price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices, whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.
Equity price risk exposure arises from the Fund’s investment
portfolio. All securities investments present a risk of loss of
capital. Except for equities sold short, the maximum risk resulting
from financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the
financial instruments.

ESSSuper Annual Report 2017

49

Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

The table below summarises the Fund’s exposure to foreign exchange risk:
Sensitivity risk analysis
Investment in
foreign currency
A$’000

Forward and
swap cover
A$’000

Net exposure
A$’000

Increase 10%
A$’000

Decrease 10%
A$’000

2,666,729

(2,942,321)

(275,592)

25,054

(30,621)

Euro

24,983

(792,689)

(767,706)

69,792

(85,300)

British Pound

24,231

(248,465)

(224,234)

20,385

(24,915)

Japanese Yen

1,055

(458,460)

(457,405)

41,583

(50,823)

69,336

(506,201)

(436,865)

39,715

(48,541)

2,786,334

(4,948,136)

(2,161,802)

196,529

(240,200)

United States Dollars

(163,209)

(2,781,868)

(2,945,077)

267,734

(327,231)

Euro

(521,593)

(713,142)

(1,234,735)

112,249

(137,193)

British Pound

(195,538)

(267,250)

(462,788)

42,072

(51,421)

Japanese Yen

(265,905)

(661,247)

(927,152)

84,287

(103,017)

Other currencies

(272,810)

(470,527)

(743,337)

67,576

(82,593)

(1,419,055)

(4,894,034)

(6,313,089)

573,918

(701,455)

30 June 2017
United States Dollars

Other currencies

30 June 2016

At 30 June 2017, had the Australian dollar strengthened/(weakened) by 10% against other currencies to which the Fund is exposed,
with all other variables held constant, the increase/(decrease) respectively in net assets attributable to members would amount to
approximately $196m/($240m), (2016: $574m/($701m)), respectively.
(iii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Fund’s interest-bearing financial assets and financial liabilities expose it to risks associated with the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows.
The Fund has established limits on investments in interest-bearing assets, which are monitored on a daily basis. The Fund may use
derivatives to hedge against unexpected increases in interest rates. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis. In accordance
with the Fund’s policy, VFMC and the internal investment team monitor the Fund’s overall interest sensitivity on a daily basis, and the
Investment Committee reviews it on a quarterly basis.
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The table below summarises the Fund’s exposure to interest rate risks. It includes the Fund’s assets and liabilities at fair values,
categorised by the maturity dates:
30 June 2017

Floating
interest
rate
$’000

3 months
or less
(fixed)
$’000

3 to 12
months
(fixed)
$’000

1 to 5
years
(fixed)
$’000

Over 5
years
(fixed)
$’000

Non-interest
bearing
$’000

Total
$’000

2,176,320

-

361,912

-

-

-

2,538,232

Receivables

-

-

-

-

-

111,121

111,121

Margin accounts

-

-

-

-

-

675,616

675,616

Equity

-

-

-

-

-

997,006

997,006

Unit trust

-

-

-

(52,790)

-

21,680,849

21,628,059

35,761

2,422

18,593

274,637

598,163

-

929,576

(56)

(656)

-

-

-

479,061

478,349

2,212,025

1,766

380,505

221,847

598,163

23,943,653

27,357,959

Non-interest bearing

-

-

-

-

-

343,783

343,783

Total liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

343,783

343,783

2,212,025

1,766

380,505

221,847

598,163

23,599,870

27,014,176

Floating
interest
rate
$’000

Less than
3 months
$’000

3 to 12
months
$’000

1 to 5
years
$’000

Over 5
year
$’000

Non-interest
bearing
$’000

Total
$’000

2,200,187

-

103,521

-

-

-

2,303,708

Receivables

-

-

-

-

-

1,101,955

1,101,955

Margin accounts

-

-

-

-

-

(231,943)

(231,943)

Equity

-

-

-

-

-

558,167

558,167

Unit trust

-

-

-

-

12,967

19,050,355

19,063,322

Debt securities

238,676

2,511

50,100

701,459

700,434

-

1,693,180

Derivative

(38,122)

494

-

-

-

1,501,999

1,464,371

2,400,741

3,005

153,621

701,459

713,401

21,980,533

25,952,760

Non-interest bearing

-

-

-

-

-

(1,398,301)

(1,398,301)

Total liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

(1,398,301)

(1,398,301)

2,400,741

3,005

153,621

701,459

713,401

20,582,232

24,554,459

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Debt securities
Derivative
Total assets
Liabilities

Net financial assets
30 June 2016

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
Liabilities

Net financial assets

At 30 June 2017, should interest rates have lowered by 50 basis points with all other variables held constant, the increase in net assets
attributable to members for the year would amount to approximately $30.0m (2016: $49.9m). If interest rates had risen by 50 basis
points, the decrease in net assets attributable to members would amount to approximately $30.0m (2016: $49.9m). These increases/
decreases in net assets attributable to members are calculated on an undiscounted basis.
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(c) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk that a counterparty will default on its contract obligations resulting in financial loss to the Fund.
Investment powers have been delegated to the Fund’s appointed investment managers subject to the restrictions imposed on the Board
by the Borrowing and Investment Powers Act 1987. VFMC and the internal investment team manage credit risk through dealing with
creditworthy counterparties. Credit risk is controlled through VFMC and the internal risk management policies which deal with credit
exposure limits, counterparty limits, dealing limits and broker limits. VFMC and the internal investment team monitor the performance
of the VFMC/Fund appointed investment managers on an ongoing basis and report periodically to the Investment Committee.
The fair value of financial assets, including derivatives, included in the financial statements, represents the Fund’s exposure to credit
risk related to those assets.
At 30 June 2017, the Fund was invested in debt securities with the following credit quality:
Rating – Debt securities

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

AAA to AAA-

488,805

783,082

AA+ to AA-

128,779

301,212

95,513

292,453

106,284

148,664

BB+ to BB-

21,167

25,650

Not Rated

97,861

269,131

938,409

1,820,192

A+ to ABBB+ to BBB-

(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities and the liability
for member benefits as they arise. This risk is controlled through the Fund’s investment in financial instruments, which under normal
market conditions are readily convertible to cash. In addition, the Fund maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet normal
operating requirements.
The ESS Act provides for the daily receipt of contributions and the payment of benefits and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk
of meeting members’ benefit payments requirements as they fall due.
In accordance with the Fund’s policy, the Finance division monitors the Fund’s liquidity position on a daily basis making advances or
recalls of investment funds to/from VFMC, Treasury Corporation of Victoria, NAB Asset Servicing or State Street as required. Sufficient
funds are maintained at call to meet anticipated short term requirements. The Fund may, from time to time, invest in derivative
contracts (including swaps) traded over the counter, which are not traded in an organised market and may be illiquid. As a result,
the Fund may not be able to liquidate quickly its investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its
liquidity requirements or to respond to specific events such as a deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer. No such
investments were held at the Statement of Financial Position date.
At 30 June 2017

Amounts included
in Statement of
Financial Position
$’000

Amounts not set
off in Statement of
Financial Position
$’000

Net amount
$’000

Derivative assets

478,348

(112,789)

365,559

Derivative liabilities

(80,003)

(74,043)

(5,960)

Total net derivatives

398,345

38,746

359,599
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At 30 June 2016

Amounts included
in Statement of
Financial Position
$’000

Amounts not set
off in Statement of
Financial Position
$’000

Net amount
$’000

1,462,603

(1,504,309)

(41,706)

(1,261,310)

1,341,994

(80,684)

201,293

(162,315)

38,978

Derivative assets
Derivative liabilities
Total net derivatives

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities
The table below analyses the Fund’s financial liabilities and net settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
At 30 June 2017

Less than
3 months
$’000

3-12
months
$’000

1-5
years
$’000

Over 5
years
$’000

Total
$’000

-

-

80,003

-

80,003

Payables

263,780

-

-

-

263,780

Total financial liabilities

263,780

-

80,003

-

343,783

Less than
3 months
$’000

3-12
months
$’000

1-5
years
$’000

Over 5
years
$’000

Total
$’000

-

-

1,261,310

-

1,261,310

Payables

136,991

-

-

-

136,991

Total financial liabilities

136,991

-

1,261,310

-

1,398,301

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

At 30 June 2016

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

(e) Funding risk
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Net assets to pay benefits as at 30 June

27,014,176

24,554,459

Accumulation funds net assets

(5,193,836)

(4,551,824)

21,820,340

20,002,635

31,690,000

31,439,000

9,869,660

11,436,365

Defined Benefits - Vested Benefits
Defined Benefits - Vested Benefits shortfall

State-funded and self-funded employers make contributions on the basis of the accruing cost of benefits for active members.
Commonwealth funded employers contribute on a pay-as-you-go basis when member benefits are paid. This method of funding is not
sufficient to address the excess of liabilities over assets.
The members’ accrued benefit of $35.4b (2016: $34.4b) exceeds the net assets of the Fund of $27.0b (2016: $24.5b), leaving an
unfunded liability of $8.4b (2016: $9.9b).
The Fund is largely dependent on the Victorian Government to fund the remaining unfunded liability. At the discretion of the Treasurer, the
Consolidated Fund contributes additional amounts (Note 18(h)). Within a funding framework announced in the Victorian Government 201718 Budget Statement, the Victorian Government anticipates that the Fund will become fully funded for the State’s portion of the liability by
2035, with the balance being funded by Commonwealth agencies on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Victorian Government funding is determined
annually through the budget process. Accordingly, a receivable for the unfunded portion has not been recognised under AASB 1056.
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(f) Fair value measurements recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.
¢¢

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

¢¢

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

¢¢

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair values of financial assets equate to the market value determinations as set out in Note 2(c).
As at 30 June 2017

Level 1
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Total
$’000

2,213,764

144,077

-

2,357,841

Australian equities

662,884

7,705,942

-

8,368,826

International equities

847,795

4,412,178

62

5,260,035

Fixed income securities

227,717

4,254,009

130,374

4,612,100

12,588

246,562

1,786,273

2,045,423

815,577

398,094

833,025

2,046,696

Infrastructure

249

301,233

1,279,315

1,580,797

Private equity

2,446

37,295

118,757

158,498

Life insurance policies

-

-

307,890

307,890

Multi asset strategies

1

611,847

-

611,848

1,093

477,255

-

478,348

-

-

71,978

71,978

4,784,114

18,588,492

4,527,674

27,900,280

(76,150)

-

-

(76,150)

(1,095)

-

-

(1,095)

International equities

(242,527)

-

-

(242,527)

Fixed income securities

(236,225)

-

-

(236,225)

(39)

-

-

(39)

(1,208)

(78,796)

-

(80,004)

-

-

(140,211)

(140,211)

(557,244)

(78,796)

(140,211)

(776,251)

4,226,870

18,509,696

4,387,463

27,124,029

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Property
Alternatives

Derivative assets
Other assets

Financial liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents
Australian equities

Private equity
Derivative liabilities
Payables

Total
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As at 30 June 2016

Level 1
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Total
$’000

2,454,768

133,272

-

2,588,040

Australian equities

264,636

6,892,073

-

7,156,709

International equities

302,705

4,236,402

-

4,539,107

Fixed income securities

139,123

4,038,073

89,436

4,266,632

16,402

200,787

1,827,046

2,044,235

821,347

460,857

561,100

1,843,304

Infrastructure

-

244,878

889,019

1,133,897

Private equity

416

233,061

281,501

514,978

Life insurance policies

-

-

291,590

291,590

Multi asset strategies

-

501,329

-

501,329

Derivatives assets

-

1,462,603

-

1,462,603

Other assets

-

-

64,497

64,497

3,999,397

18,403,335

4,004,189

26,406,921

(226,483)

-

-

(226,483)

(857)

-

-

(857)

(1,902)

-

-

(1,902)

(224,761)

-

-

(224,761)

(159)

-

-

(159)

Derivatives liabilities

-

(1,261,310)

-

(1,261,310)

Payables

-

-

(67,428)

(67,428)

(454,162)

(1,261,310)

(67,428)

(1,782,900)

3,545,235

17,142,025

3,936,761

24,624,021

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Property
Alternatives

Financial liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents
Australian equities
International equities
Fixed income securities
Private equity

Total

The following table shows a reconciliation of the movement in the fair value of financial instruments categorised within Level 3
between the beginning and the end of the reporting period.
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

3,936,761

3,739,745

106,563

444,340

Purchases / applications

1,242,557

1,082,518

Sales / redemptions

(898,418)

(1,329,842)

4,387,463

3,936,761

Opening balance
Total gains and losses

Closing balance
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Gains or losses recognised in the Operating Statement for Level
3 transactions are presented in the movement in fair value of
investments as follows:
For the year ending 30 June 2017

Total
$’000

Total gains recognised in the Operating Statement

106,563

Total gains recognised in the Operating Statement
for assets held at the end of the reporting period

9,304

For the year ending 30 June 2016

Total
$’000

Total gains recognised in the Operating Statement

272,277

Total gains recognised in the Operating Statement
for assets held at the end of the reporting period

193,372

The investments managed by VFMC on behalf of the Fund
and internally held investments include unlisted investments.
Some of these unlisted investments are traded on an inactive
secondary market, and their fair values at reporting date are
based on the prices advised by fund managers or valuations
determined by appropriately skilled independent third parties
utilising generally accepted and well-known methodologies.
Where valuation techniques including discounted cash
flows, multiples based analysis, comparison with similar
transactions and other techniques considered appropriate in
the circumstances have been employed in pricing or valuing
investments, the valuations are inherently subject to estimation
uncertainty. Given this inherent subjectivity, the underlying
inputs and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis to
ensure the valuations reflect the best estimates of the economic
conditions at reporting date. The value of such investments is set
out in the following table.
Level 3

The disclosures below provide details of the inputs and assumptions
used in the current valuation models. Further detailed information
has been provided where available. A significant majority of these
investments are held via third party pooled investment vehicles, and
as such the Fund is not privy to the detailed assumptions used to
value the underlying investment assets.
Fixed income securities
Diversified fixed income investments comprise investments in
government, government-related, corporate and securitised
bonds, loans and other debt instruments, primarily from Australian
issuers but with some limited exposure to international issuers,
and fixed interest and currency instruments through externally
managed unlisted pooled vehicles and segregated portfolios.
The valuation of diversified fixed income investments are
primarily based on third party pricing servicers, brokers,
market makers and valuation methodologies determined to
be appropriate by the manager or their independent valuation
agent. Such methodologies applied may include discounted cash
flow, amortised cost, direct comparison and others. Assumptions
which may be subject to estimation uncertainty would include
appropriate credit spread and other risk premium, future risk free
rate, future cash flows, identification of appropriate comparables,
future economic and regulatory conditions.
Infrastructure investments
Infrastructure investments comprise both domestic and
international exposures to transport, social, energy and
other infrastructure assets through unlisted pooled vehicles
and unlisted trusts. The valuations of unlisted infrastructure
investments are based primarily on the discounted cash flow
methodology. Key inputs and assumptions which are subject to
estimation uncertainty include the choice of risk free discount
rates, risk premium, asset utilisation rates, capital expenditure
and operating cost forecasts and other estimated future cash
flows dependent on the longer term general economic forecasts
and the forecast performance of applicable underlying assets
(including for example, gearing level forecasts, expected foreign
taxation rates, long term retail price indices, counterparty risks
and group taxation relief ).

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

62

-

130,374

89,436

1,786,273

1,827,044

833,025

561,100

Life insurance policies

Infrastructure

1,279,315

889,019

Private equity

118,757

281,501

Life insurance policies

-

291,590

Multi assets strategies

-

-

4,147,806

3,939,690

The valuation of insurance investments is primarily based on a
discounted cash flow methodology. The Fund has unit holdings
in VFMC Trusts which have an exposure to US life insurance
policies which are valued by an independent valuer. The portfolio
of policies is valued using the actuarial asset share method. The
actuarial asset share method is based on the assumptions of
probabilities of insured’s mortality and premium payments on
the valuation date. Other assumptions and interdependencies
in the valuation model include weighted average discount rate
applied to the portfolio, life expectancy estimates obtained from
qualified providers and expected premium payments based on
“back solving” premiums optimisation method.

International equities
Fixed income securities
Property
Alternatives

There is a possibility that outcomes within the next financial year
would be different from the assumptions used in the current
valuation models and a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the related investments could be required.
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Private equity investments

Multi asset strategies

Private equity investments comprise of both domestic and
international exposures to venture capital, buyout, special
situations and expansion capital sectors. These investments
include externally managed unlisted pooled vehicles and
trusts. The valuations of unlisted private equity investments are
primarily based on multiples of earnings, discounted cash flow,
market equivalents and other market accepted methodologies.
Assumptions which may be subject to estimation uncertainty
would include the identification of appropriate comparables,
estimated future profits, risk free rate, risk premium, estimated
future cash flows and future economic and regulatory conditions.

Multi asset strategies combine the use of multiple asset classes
in their investment methodologies. All of the above sources of
valuation techniques may apply. A significant majority of the
investment types listed above are held via third party pooled
investment vehicles, and as such the Fund is not privy to any
sensitivity analysis that may be performed.

Property investments
Property investments comprise externally managed unlisted
property trusts with exposure to domestic and international
commercial, industrial, retail and development property market.
The valuation of unlisted property investments are primarily
based on discounted cash flow, capitalisation and direct
comparison methodologies. Assumptions which may be subject
to estimation uncertainty would include the identification of
appropriate comparables, estimated future profits, free rate, risk
premium, estimated future cash flows and future economic and
regulatory conditions.
Alternative investments
Alternatives investments comprise investments in hedge funds
and other non-traditional investments that do not fit within the
definition of other asset classes but which provide diversification
benefits to the total portfolio. Investments are made through
externally managed unlisted pool vehicles.
The valuation of alternative investments are primarily based on
prices quoted on an exchange or traded in a dealer market. For
less liquid securities, valuation methodologies are set out by each
manager. Depending on the investment, the methodologies
applied include discounted cash flow, amortised cost, direct
comparison and other market accepted methodologies. The
investment manager may choose to appoint independent
valuation agents to seek independent price verification.
Assumptions which may be subject to estimation uncertainty
would include appropriate credit spread and other risk premium,
future risk free rate, future cash flows, identification of appropriate
comparables, future economic and regulatory conditions.
A significant majority of the investment types listed above are held
via third party pooled investment vehicles, and as such, the Fund is
not privy to any sensitivity analysis that may be performed.

22. Valuation of accrued liability
The accrued benefit liability of the ESSS Defined Benefit
Fund for the purposes of these financial statements was
calculated in accordance with AASB 1056 Financial Reporting
by Superannuation Plans. The primary sponsor of the Fund is
the Victorian Government which, as an employer, is required to
use AASB 119 Employee Benefits to value its accrued benefit
liabilities in its financial reports. Furthermore, AASB 119 requires
the use of a government bond rate as the discount rate when
calculating the Defined Benefit Fund’s accrued liabilities. This rate
is currently lower than the discount rate used for the purposes
of the Fund’s financial reporting. As such, the financial reports of
sponsoring employers will, in total, reflect a higher liability than
that reported by the Fund.

23. Superannuation funds
The Fund contributes on behalf of its employees to the Fund,
a public sector defined benefit fund and other accumulation
plans, in order to satisfy the superannuation guarantee
entitlements of employees: there are no outstanding
superannuation contributions as at 30 June 2017 (2016: nil).
In the case of the defined benefit part of the Fund, employer
contributions are based on the advice of the Fund’s Actuary.
The Fund has no unfunded liabilities for employee entitlements
for the defined benefit fund under the Fund (2016: nil). For
the year ended 30 June 2017, the Fund made superannuation
contributions to the Fund of $0.989m (2016: nil), and to other
accumulation plans of $0.499m (2016: nil).

24. Contingent assets and liabilities
There are no known contingent assets and liabilities as at 30 June
2017 (2016: nil).

25. Subsequent events
There have not been any other matters or circumstances
occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year that have
significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operation of
the Fund.
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President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer’s Declaration

Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme
for the year end 30 June 2017
The Emergency Services Superannuation Board hereby declares:
(a) The attached financial statements for the Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme have been prepared in accordance with
Standing Direction 5.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting
Standards including Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting requirements;
(b) In our opinion, the information set out in the Statement of Financial Position, Operating Statement, Statement of Changes in
Member Benefits, Statement of Changes in Reserves, Statement of Cash Flows and accompanying notes presents fairly the financial
transactions during the financial year ended 30 June 2017 and the financial position of the Fund at 30 June 2017; and
(c) At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in the financial
statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Board of the Emergency Services Superannuation Board (ABN 28 161 296 741).
Dated at Melbourne this 24th day of August 2017.

Joan Fitzpatrick
President
ESSSuper
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Mark Puli
Chief Executive Officer
ESSSuper

Paul Healey
Chief Financial Officer
ESSSuper
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2017
Note

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

11(a)

813

28,830

4

283

3,753

1,096

32,583

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and prepayments
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment

5

595

1,497

Intangible assets

6

1,357

2,295

Total non-current assets

1,952

3,792

Total assets

3,048

36,375

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables

7

50

2,140

Employee benefits

8

-

3,014

Provisions

9

-

218

50

5,372

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Employee benefits

8

-

469

Provisions

9

-

233

2,998

-

Total non-current liabilities

2,998

702

Total liabilities

3,048

6,074

-

30,301

-

30,301

-

30,301

Loan from the Fund

15(f )

Net assets
Equity
Operating Reserve

10

Total Equity

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Comprehensive Operating Statement for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

15(d)

2,754

32,483

Other superannuation and pension funds

-

203

Sundry Income

-

813

Total revenues

2,754

33,499

30,301

-

2,754

30,738

33,055

30,738

Net result

(30,301)

2,761

Comprehensive result

(30,301)

2,761

Revenues from continuing operations
Fees and charges appropriated by the Board from:
Emergency Services and State Superannuation

Expenses
Transfer of net assets to the Fund free of charge
Trustee expenses
Total expenses

3

The Comprehensive Operating Statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

797

35,933

-

823

(1,518)

(30,664)

(48)

(2,128)

(28,300)

-

(29,069)

3,964

52

79

-

(1,353)

52

(1,274)

Loan from the Fund

1,000

-

Net cash flows used in financing activities

1,000

-

(28,017)

2,690

28,830

26,140

813

28,830

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

30,301

27,540

(30,301)

2,761

-

30,301

Cash flows from operating activities
Recovery from:
Emergency Services and State Superannuation
Sundry income
Expenses paid
GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities:
Transfer of assets to the Fund
Net cash flows from operating activities

11(b)

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment
Purchase of plant, equipment and intangibles
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

11(a)

The Statement of Cash Flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note
Operating Reserve
Opening balance
Net result
Closing balance

10

The Statement of Changes in Equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Emergency Services Superannuation Board

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
1. Operations of the Board
The Emergency Services Superannuation Board (the Board) and
Emergency Services Superannuation Scheme (the Fund) were
established under the Emergency Services Superannuation Act
1986 (ESS Act).
At its 9 June 2016 meeting the Board approved a recommendation
from Management that the Board and Fund restructure their
operations in order to optimise the functionality of each entity.
As at 1 July 2016, the Board ceased its role as administrator of the
Fund. The Fund is responsible for the running of its operations
and the Board provides Trustee related services only. The Board
of Directors remain as employees of the Board whilst all other
ESSSuper employees are Fund employees. All administration
costs associated with running the Fund are incurred by the Fund.
Under the new structure the Net Result from Operations is no
longer attributed to the Board and instead is reflected within the
Fund’s equity position. The 2016 closing position of the Board to
the value of $30.301m has been transferred to the Fund. During
the year the Board purchased assets of $3.553m from the Fund.
The Board recoups any expenditure it does incur from the Fund
and continues to operate as a going concern.
There were no legislative amendments required for this change
and the Fund and Board still meet the requirements of the ESS Act.
This financial report includes the activities of the Board.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The Financial Management Act 1994 requires the Board to prepare
a financial report in respect of each financial year.
The following summary explains the significant accounting
policies that have been adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements that form part of this financial report.
(a) Basis of preparation
The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which
has been prepared in accordance with Standing Direction 5.2
of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial
Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards (AAS)
including Interpretations, and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements.
The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the
preparation of these financial statements whereby assets,
liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the
reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is
received or paid.
The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical
cost, except for the revaluation of certain non-current assets
and financial instruments. Cost is based on the fair values of
the consideration given in exchange for assets. All amounts are
presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise noted.

In the application of AASs, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision, and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which
ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the
concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the
substance of the underlying transaction or other events is reported.
(b) Compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)
The financial statements of the Board were authorised for issue
in accordance with a resolution of the Board Members on
24 August 2017.
As the Board is classified as a not-for-profit entity for financial
reporting purposes it has adopted and complied with the “Aus”
paragraphs included in AAS. Accordingly, it cannot make
a statement of full compliance with IFRS.
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those
applied in the previous financial year.
(c) Revenue recognition
Revenue, including interest, is recognised in accordance with
AASB 118 Revenues and is recognised to the extent that it is
earned. Revenue earned by appropriating money from the Fund
is recognised as it is charged.
(d) Expenses incurred in operating as trustee
Under the new structure, expenses (both direct and indirect)
are recognised as they are incurred by the Board relating to the
running of the Trustee only. However, the Board recoups any
expenditure it does incur from the Fund on a monthly basis.
(e) Receivables and prepayments
Receivables
Receivables, which generally have 30-60 day terms, are
recognised and carried at original invoice amounts. Collectability
of receivables are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which
are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for
impairment of receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Board may not be able to collect all amounts
according to the original terms of the receivables. No such
provision has been provided in the current year.
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The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash
flows relating to short term receivables are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement.
Prepayments
Where an amount is paid for the provision for goods and services,
and where the benefit arising from the expenditure extends
beyond the current accounting period, then such expenditure is
brought to account over the period to which the benefit derives.
In such circumstances, a prepayment will exist at balance date
representing the value of the economic benefit that will be
derived in the future.
(f) Payables
Accounts payable are recognised as amounts to be paid in
the future for goods and services received, whether or not
billed to the Board and are carried at nominal amounts which
approximate the fair value. Payables are normally settled within
30 days.
(g) Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities include cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and payables. The carrying amount of these items
approximates fair value. Refer to Note 18(e) for further details.
(h) Operating leases
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all of the risks and
benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease commitments are recognised as an
expense on a basis that reflects the pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed by the lessee.
Payments made are charged to the Comprehensive Operating
Statement on a straight line basis for the period of the lease.
(i) Employee benefits
Wages, salaries and annual leave
Under the new Board and Fund structure the provision of
employee benefits in respect of wages, salaries and annual leave
is recognised in the Fund. The Board provides no employee
benefits to the Board of Directors. The 2016 comparison
represents the amount which the Board obligated to pay
resulting from employees’ services provided up to the 2016
balance date. The provision has been calculated at discounted
amounts based on expected future wage and salary rates.
Related on-costs, such as payroll tax and work cover have
been disclosed separately in accordance with AASB 101.78(d)
Presentation of Financial Statements.
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Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement,
liabilities for wages, salaries and annual leave are measured at:
¢¢

nominal value-component that the Board expects to settle
wholly within 12 months; and

¢¢

present value-component that the Board does not expect to
settle wholly within 12 months.

Long service leave
Under the new Board and Fund structure the provision of
employee benefits in respect of long service leave is recognised
in the Fund. The Board provides no long service leave to the
Board of Directors. The 2016 comparison is the liability for
employee benefits in respect of long service leave and represents
the value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by
the Board resulting from employees’ services provided up to the
2016 balance date.
The current portion of the nominal long service leave liability
reflected in the financial statements was based on staff with
benefits that have vested (such as a minimum of 7 years’ service
history and staff with 10 and more years’ service history).
The non-current portion of long service leave liability was a
calculation of the arising liability using salary, number of years
service and probability of reaching long service leave entitlement.
This figure was discounted using the rates attaching to national
government guaranteed securities at the 2016 balance date,
which most closely match the terms of maturity of the related
liabilities. In determining the liability for employee benefits,
consideration has been given to future increases in wage and
salary rates, and the Board’s experience with staff turnover rates.
Related on-costs have also been included in the liability.
Unconditional long service leave (LSL) was disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements as a current liability, even where the
Board does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months
because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave
within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:
¢¢

nominal value-component that the Board expects to settle
wholly within 12 months; and

¢¢

present value-component that the Board does not expect to
settle wholly within 12 months.

Superannuation
The Board contributes on behalf of its directors to the Fund and
other accumulation plans in order to satisfy entitlements of directors.
The amount charged to the Comprehensive Operating Statement in
respect of superannuation represents the contributions made and
payable by the Board to superannuation funds.
Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on
the relevant rules of each plan. See Note 13 for further details.

(j) Provisions
Make-good provision
The 10 year lease agreement expired on 30 June 2017. The
provision for make-good obligations for the rental of premises
at 140 William Street, Melbourne, which specifically related to
the internal staircase that connects the occupied office floors has
been written off and recognised in the Comprehensive Operating
Statement at balance date.
A new 10 year lease agreement was entered by the Board acting
as Trustee of the Fund from 1 July 2017. In the rental agreement
the requirement that the premises be returned to their original
state with removal of the staircase remains. There is no general
‘make good’ requirement pertaining to the standard open space
layout of the leased premises.
(k) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs, where applicable, are expensed as incurred and
are limited to the increase in the make good provision due to the
unwinding of discounts to reflect the passing of time.
(l) Impairment of assets

(m) Fair value measurement
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement establishes a single source of
guidance for all fair value measurements. AASB 13 does not
change when the Board is required to use fair value, but rather
provides guidance on how to measure fair value under Australian
Accounting Standards when fair value is required or permitted.
The Board has considered the specific requirements relating to
highest and best use, valuation premise, and principal (or most
advantageous) market. The methods, assumptions, processes
and procedures for determining fair value were revisited and
adjusted where applicable. In light of AASB 13, the Board has
reviewed the fair value principles as well as its current valuation
methodologies in assessing the fair value, and the assessment
has not materially changed the fair values recognised.
The following points provide an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.
¢¢

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities;

¢¢

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

¢¢

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

All of the Board’s assets are assessed annually for indications of
impairment.
If there is an indication of impairment the assets concerned are
tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds their possible
recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its
recoverable amount the difference is written off via a charge to
the Comprehensive Operating Statement.
It is deemed that, in the event of the loss of an asset, the future
economic benefits arising from the use of the asset will be
replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary has been
made. The recoverable amount for most assets is measured at
the higher of depreciated replacement cost and fair value less
costs to sell. The recoverable amount for assets held primarily
to generate net cash inflows is measured at the higher of the
present value of future cash flows expected to be obtained from
the asset value less costs to sell.

(n) Plant and equipment
Items of furniture and fittings, equipment and motor vehicles are
recognised at fair value (cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment). Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis
over the asset’s estimated useful life to the Board. Depreciation
rates are reviewed annually with a view to adjusting them to
reflect the most recent assessment of the useful life of new assets
purchased by the Board.
Useful life 2017

Useful life 2016

Office equipment

5 years

5 years

Computer equipment

4 years

4 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

5 years

Furniture and fittings

10 years

10 years

In line with Financial Reporting Direction 103F Non-Financial
Physical Assets, depreciated cost represents a reasonable
approximation of fair value.
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(o) Intangibles – Software costs

(q) Rounding off of amounts

Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets
without physical substance. They are initially recognised at cost;
subsequently those with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Costs
incurred subsequent to initial recognition are capitalised when it
is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow to
the Board.

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to
the nearest thousand dollars unless otherwise stated.

Expenditures incurred in respect of software development are
carried forward when their future recoverability can reasonably
be regarded as assured and they will contribute to future period
revenue generation and/or cost reductions.

(s) Operating Reserve

Any expenditures carried forward are amortised over the period
in which the Board expects to realise the benefits.
The useful life for each major class of intangible assets is:
Useful life 2017

Useful life 2016

Superannuation
administration software

4 years

4 years

Internally generated
software

5 years

5 years

Other computer software

4 years

4 years

The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for
impairment annually when the asset is not yet in use, or more
frequently when an indicator of impairment arises during the
reporting year indicating that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Intangibles with a finite life are assessed annually for
impairment indicators. If there is an indication of impairment it is
tested as to whether the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Any excess of the carrying asset over the recoverable
amount is recognised as an impairment loss.
(p) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are stated net of any applicable
GST. Where applicable, GST incurred that is not recoverable
from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) has been recognised
as part of the expense or asset to which it applies. Receivables
and payables are stated with any applicable GST included in the
values. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the ATO is included as a receivable or payable in the Statement of
Financial Position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components
of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which
are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are
presented as operating cash flow.
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(r) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, at bank and
short term deposits with a maturity of less than 90 days.

Expenses incurred by the Board are offset against revenue
appropriated from the Fund at pre-determined rates. It is
possible for this revenue to exceed the actual expenses incurred.
The net results are held in the Operating Reserve in Note 10.
(t) Commitments
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in
the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed by way of a
note, refer to Note 14. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
are presented net of GST receivable or payable respectively.
(u) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised
in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of a note (refer
to Note 19 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities) and, if
quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets
and contingent liabilities are presented net of GST receivable or
payable respectively.

(v) Accounting standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the following standards which are expected to be relevant to the Board were in
issue but not yet effective. The Board has chosen not to adopt these new standards early. The Board anticipates that the adoption of
these Standards will have no material impact on the financial report of the Board.
AASB Amendment / Standard

Title

Effective date

30 June 2017
Year End applicability

AASB 2016-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

1 January 2017

Optional

AASB 2016-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107

1 January 2017

Optional

AASB 2016-4

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Recoverable Amount of Non-Cash-Generating
Specialised Assets of Not-for-Profit Entities

1 January 2017

Optional

AASB 2017-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Further Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle

1 January 2017

Optional

AASB 9 and the relevant
amending standards

Financial Instruments

1 January 2018

Optional

AASB 15 and the relevant
amending standards

Revenue from contracts with customers

1 January 2018

Optional

AASB Interpretation 22

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

1 January 2019

Optional

AASB 2017-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Transfer of Investment Property, Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle and Other Amendments

1 January 2019

Optional

AASB 16

Leases

1 January 2019

Optional

3. Trustee Expenses
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

725

19,934

-

1,190

16

15

Audit fees (Fund) - Victorian Auditor General

-

240

Internal audit fees

-

227

366

2,412

Office administration expenditure

2

579

Premises expenditure

2

1,914

Information services expenditure

-

1,882

1,638

1,548

Disability related expenditure

-

750

Loss / (Gain) on asset disposals

5

(13)

Other expenses

-

60

2,754

30,738

Salaries and related on costs
Communication costs
Audit fees (Board) - Victorian Auditor General

Other professional fees

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Expenses incurred by the trustee in administering the Fund
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4. Receivables and prepayments
Current

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

-

1,584

140

-

-

432

8

376

135

1,361

283

3,753

Receivable - recovery of expenditure:
The Fund – administration charge
The Fund - Trustee expenses
Department of Treasury & Finance (DTF)
Other debtors and prepayments:
Other debtors
Prepayments
Total

5. Plant and equipment
Asset Class

Opening
carrying value

Disposals

Additions

Depreciation
expense

Closing
carrying value

2017
$’000

2017
$’000

2017
$’000

2017
$’000

2017
$’000

272

(272)

272

(91)

181

Office equipment

49

(49)

49

(12)

37

Leasehold assets

360

(120)

134

(374)

-

Computer equipment

595

(597)

595

(320)

273

Motor vehicles

221

(292)

222

(47)

104

1,497

(1,330)

1,272

(844)

595

Opening
carrying value

Disposals

Additions

Depreciation
expense

Closing
carrying value

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

267

-

96

(91)

272

Office equipment

12

-

46

(9)

49

Leasehold assets

718

-

13

(371)

360

Computer equipment

718

(10)

229

(342)

595

Motor vehicles

355

(56)

-

(78)

221

2,070

(66)

384

(891)

1,497

2017
Office furniture & fittings

Total
Asset Class
2016
Office furniture & fittings

Total

The above assets have been classified as level 3 in the Fair Value Hierarchy. Significant unobservable inputs are incorporated in the fair
value measurement such as estimation of useful life. The assets are valued using the technique of depreciated replacement cost. There
have been no transfers between levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy in respect of these assets.
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6. Intangible assets
Asset Class

Opening
carrying value

Disposals

Additions

Amortisation
expense

Closing
carrying value

2017

2017
$’000

2017
$’000

2017
$’000

2017
$’000

2017
$’000

Computer software

2,295

(2,439)

2,295

(794)

1,357

Total

2,295

(2,439)

2,295

(794)

1,357

Opening
carrying value

Disposals

Additions

Amortisation
expense

Closing
carrying value

2016

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

2016
$’000

Computer software

1,983

-

969

(657)

2,295

Total

1,983

-

969

(657)

2,295

Asset Class

7. Payables
Current

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Sundry creditors

15

218

Accrued expenditure

35

1,922

Total

50

2,140

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Unconditional and expected to settle wholly within 12 months

-

969

Unconditional and expected to settle wholly after 12 months

-

126

Annual leave on costs

-

44

Unconditional and expected to settle wholly within 12 months

-

33

Unconditional and expected to settle wholly after 12 months

-

1,760

Long service leave on costs

-

82

Total current employee benefits

-

3,014

Long service leave

-

448

Long service leave on costs

-

21

Total non-current employee benefits

-

469

Total employee benefits

-

3,483

8. Employee benefits
Liability for aggregate long service leave and annual leave, including on-costs:
Current
Employee benefits
Annual leave:

Long service leave:

Non-current

`
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2017
%

2016
%

Assumed rate of increase in wage
and salary rates

-

4.13

Discount rate (average percentage)

-

1.79

Years

Years

-

13

Settlement term (average years)

Movements in provisions
Movements in the class of provision during the financial year are
set out below:
2017

Make good
provision
Non-current
$’000

Rental
provision
Current
$’000

233

218

(233)

(218)

-

-

Make good
provision
Non-current
$’000

Rental
provision
Current
$’000

219

383

Additional provision /
(reduction) recognised

14

(165)

Carrying amount at the
end of the year

233

218

Carrying amount at start of the year
(Reduction) provision recognised
Carrying amount at the
end of the year

9. Provisions
Make good provision
Non-current

2016
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Make good provision

-

233

Total

-

233

The 10 year lease agreement expired on 30 June 2017. The
provision for make-good obligations for the rental of premises
at 140 William Street, Melbourne, which specifically related to
the internal staircase that connects the occupied office floors has
been written off and recognised in the Comprehensive Operating
Statement at balance date.
A new 10 year lease agreement was entered by the Board acting
as Trustee of the Fund from 1 July 2017. In the rental agreement
the requirement that the premises be returned to their original
state with removal of the staircase remains. There is no general
‘make good’ requirement pertaining to the standard open space
layout of the leased premises.

Carrying amount at start of the year

10. Operating Reserve
The Operating Reserve has been created under the powers
prescribed from the ESS Act.
The Operating Reserve within the Board has been created to be
used for the following possible purposes, namely to finance:
¢¢

appropriate action to address any adverse financial outcomes
(excluding investment fluctuations) as a result of highly
unlikely and unanticipated events; and

¢¢

significant capital projects that benefit both current and
future Fund members.

Rental provision
Current

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Rental expense provision

-

218

Total

-

218

Administration expenses for the Fund are incurred by the Board
and offset against revenue appropriated from the Fund at
predetermined rates. This revenue could result in either a surplus
or deficit, represented by the Operating Reserve. Assets and
funds that are deemed to be belonging to the Board entity may
be transferred from the Fund, which will increase the surplus to
the Operating Reserve. At the discretion of the Board, it could
determine that the purpose for which the Operating Reserve
was created no longer exists and should it decide in the future to
terminate the Operating Reserve it may also determine that any
remaining balance be returned to Fund members.

Opening balance
Net result
Closing balance
76

ESSSuper Annual Report 2017

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

30,301

27,540

(30,301)

2,761

-

30,301

11. Cash Flow reconciliation

12. The Board’s obligations

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per
Statement of Financial Position to Statement of Cash Flow

The Board may from time to time appropriate money from the
Fund to recoup any expenditure it incurs necessary to operate as
trustee per the ESS Act.

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Statement of Cash Flows

813

28,830

Statement of Financial Position

813

28,830

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents as per:

Difference

Net assets available to pay benefits

Net liabilities

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

(30,301)

2,761

(Decrease) / increase in provisions
for employee benefits (Note 8)

(3,483)

-

(Decrease) / increase in creditors
and accruals (Note 7)

(2,090)

70

Decrease / (increase) in receivables
and prepayments

3,615

(251)

(Decrease) / increase in provisions
(Note 9)

(451)

(151)

Loss / (gain) on sale of fixed assets
(Note 3)

5

(13)

Depreciation and amortisation (Note 3)

1,638

1,548

Increase in loan from the Fund

1,998

-

(29,069)

3,964

Net cash flows from
operating activities

Emergency Services
Superannuation Scheme

Liability for accrued benefits

(b) Reconciliation of Net Result to Net cash flows from
operating activities

Net result

The Board’s financial statements do not include the assets and
liabilities of the Fund. However, a summary of the total assets
and liabilities of the Fund, as reflected in its audited Statement of
Financial Position as at 30 June 2017 and 2016, is as follows:

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, cash at bank, and short term
deposits with a maturity of less than 90 days.

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

27,014,176

24,554,459

(35,371,836)

(34,447,824)

(8,357,660)

(9,893,365)

The Board, State-funded and self-funded employing authorities
make superannuation contributions on the basis of the accruing
cost of benefits for active members. Commonwealth-funded
employing authorities contribute on a pay-as-you-go basis when
member benefits are paid.
The Fund is largely dependent on the Victorian Government
to fund the remaining unfunded liability. At the discretion of
the Treasurer, the Consolidated Fund contributes additional
amounts. Within a funding framework announced in the
Victorian Government 2017-18 Budget Statement, the Victorian
Government anticipates that the Fund will become fully funded for
the State’s portion of the liability by 2035, with the balance being
funded by Commonwealth agencies on a pay-as-you-go basis.

13. Superannuation funds
Under the new structure, the Board of Directors will remain as
employees of the Board whilst all other ESSSuper employees will
now be considered as Fund employees.
At the balance date, the Board contributes on behalf of its
Directors to the Fund, a public sector defined benefit fund and
other accumulation plans, in order to satisfy the superannuation
guarantee entitlements of employees; there are no outstanding
superannuation contributions as at 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).
In the case of the defined benefit part of the Fund, employer
contributions are based on the advice of the Fund’s Actuary. The
Board has no unfunded liabilities for employee entitlements for
the defined benefit fund under the Fund (2016: Nil).
For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Board made superannuation
contributions to the Fund of $0.011m (2016: $0.924m), and to
other accumulation plans of $0.033m (2016: $0.555m).
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14. Commitments

Deputy Members: Government Appointed

Capital commitments

¢¢

Mr Brian Frazer (appointed 15 February 2017);

¢¢

At 30 June 2017 the Board had no capital commitments (2016: Nil).

Ms Dawn Oldham (appointed 15 February 2017); and

¢¢

Ms Jacqui Pirone (appointed 15 February 2017).

Operating lease commitments

Deputy Members: Member Elected
¢¢

Ms Carolyn Clancy, Deputy for Ms Angela Stringer;

¢¢

Mr Wayne Johnston, Deputy for Mr Dean Glare;

Contracted but not provided for
and payable:

¢¢

Mr Carl Luke, Deputy for Mr Michael Stephenson;

¢¢

Mr Christopher Perry, Deputy for Mr Alex Gagachef; and

Not longer than one year

-

1,908

¢¢

Total lease expenditure contracted
for at balance date

-

1,908

Deputy for Mr Colin Birch and Deputy for Mr Adam Gullo –
vacant.

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

The 10 year lease agreement expired on 30 June 2017. A new
10 year lease agreement was entered by the Board acting as
Trustee of the Fund. The Operating lease commitments relating
to the new lease are disclosed in the Fund.

15. Related entity information

Chief Executive Officer:
¢¢

Mr Mark Puli.

* The Minister’s remuneration and allowances are set by the
Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968 and are
reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services
Financial Report.
(b) Remuneration received or receivable by responsible persons

(a) Responsible persons
The names of persons who were responsible during the year and
up to the date of signing the financial report were:
¢¢

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

972

943

2017
Numbers

2016
Numbers

$0 - $9,999

8

8

$20,000 - $29,999

3

-

$30,000 - $39,999

1

3

Responsible persons remuneration

The Honourable Robin Scott, Minister for Finance.*

The below listed Board members and their deputies:
Board members: Government Appointed

Income band

¢¢

Ms Joan Fitzpatrick, President;

¢¢

Ms Sarah Barker;

¢¢

The Honourable William Baxter (term expired 31 August 2016);

¢¢

Mr Douglas Kearsley (appointed 16 August 2016);

$40,000 - $49,999

8

9

¢¢

Ms Elizabeth Flynn (term expired 28 May 2017 and
reappointed 30 May 2017);

$70,000 - $79,999

-

1

$120,000 - $ 129,999

1

-

¢¢

Mr Paul Mulraney (appointed 18 October 2016); and

¢¢

Ms Susan Pelka.

$370,000 - $ 379,999

1

1

Board Members: Member Elected

In respect of two member elected members, part or all of their
fees are paid or payable to the benefit of their primary employer.

¢¢

Mr Colin Birch (appointed 11 February 2017);

¢¢

Mr Alex Gagachef;

¢¢

Mr Dean Glare;

¢¢

Mr Adam Gullo;

¢¢

Mr Michael Stephenson;

(c) Loans

¢¢

Ms Angela Stringer; and

The Board provides no loans to Board Members.

¢¢

Mr Phillip Wilson (retired 10 February 2017).
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The remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer is disclosed in
this note, however he is paid and employed through the Fund
under the new structure.

(d) Transactions with responsible persons and related entities
The aggregate amounts brought to account in respect of the following types of transactions and each class of related entity are:
Transaction type

Nature of terms and conditions

Related entity

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Fund administration expenditure

On a fee recovery basis

The Fund

-

32,483

Trustee expenditure

On a cost recovery basis

The Fund

2,754

-

2,754

32,483

Total

(e) Amounts due from related entities
Amounts due from related entities at balance date are disclosed in Note 4. This represents the outstanding reimbursement from the
Fund and DTF for expenditure incurred by the Board.
Transaction type

Nature of terms and conditions

Related entity

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Fund administration fees

On a fee recovery basis

The Fund

-

1,584

Trustee expenditure

On a cost recovery basis

The Fund

140

-

Pension administration fees

On a cost recovery basis

Department of Treasury & Finance

-

432

140

2,016

Total

(f) Amounts payable to related entities
Transaction type

Related entity

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

Loan from the Fund

The Fund

2,998

-

2,998

-

Total

(g) Other related party transactions
Other related transactions and loans requiring disclosure under the Directions of the Minister for Finance have been considered and
there are no matters to report.

16. Executive remuneration
Under the new structure, the Board of Directors will remain as employees of the Board whilst all other ESSSuper employees are now
considered Fund employees and executive remuneration is disclosed in the Fund’s 2017 financial statements.
For the first year of implementation of Financial Reporting Directions 21C Disclosures of responsible persons and executive officers in the
financial report, no 2016 comparatives are required to be disclosed. Refer to 2016 financial statement for executive remuneration for
the 2015-16 reporting period.
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17. Remuneration of auditors

(b) Price risk management
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

-

255

Amounts paid or due and payable to
the Victorian Auditor General for an
audit of the Board financial statement

16

-

Total

16

255

Amounts paid or due and payable
to the Victorian Auditor General for
an audit of the Fund and Board
financial statements

In 2016, as administrator of the Fund, the Board was responsible
for the audit costs of the Fund’s financial statements.
In 2017, as the trustee, the Board is responsible for the audit costs
of the Board’s financial statements.

18. Financial risk management,
objectives and policies
Risk management policies
This note presents information about the Board’s financial
instrument risk management objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risk and the management of capital.
The Board has responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the risk management framework to guide the Board to identify
and analyse the risks faced by the Board.
The Board’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
accounts receivable.
The Board’s activities do not expose it to the risks of changes in
price risk. Liquidity risk for the Board is managed as part of the
Fund’s liquidity policy.

The Board is not exposed to price risk.
(c) Liquidity risk management
The Board has in place a framework to manage the Board’s short,
medium and long term funding and liquidity.
Liquidity risk is managed with a Board-approved annual expense,
capital acquisition and recovery budget. Performance against
budget is reported regularly to the Board and corrective action,
if required, to keep within set parameters is instigated. Formal
invoices for recoveries are issued to the Fund monthly.
(d) Credit risk exposures
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Board.
The Board only deals with a limited number of government
superannuation funds in its capacity as trustee and they are all
creditworthy counterparties. This in turn mitigates the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The Board’s exposure is continuously
monitored and the Board’s only significant credit risk exposure is
to the Fund and to the Treasury Corporation of Victoria.
Trade receivables are concentrated in Australia. The maximum
exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or
other security at balance date to recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets, net of any provisions
for doubtful debts, as disclosed in the Statement of Financial
Position and notes to the financial statements.
At balance date, 0% of receivables are due from the Victorian
Government. In 2016 21% of receivables were due from the
Victorian Government for fees for the administration of the
Former Judges of the Constitutional Protected Schemes
(Magistrates and Judges Pension Schemes). This item is
recognised in the Fund in 2017 under the new structure.

The Board does not enter into or trade financial instruments
including derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
The Board frequently reviews its exposure to credit risk, price risk,
interest risk and liquidity risk, and undertakes regular monitoring
of the performance of its financial assets and liabilities.

(e) Fair value

Significant accounting policies

19. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods
adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses
recognised in respect of each class of financial asset and financial
liability are disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

There are no known contingent assets and liabilities as at 30 June
2017. (2016: Nil).

(a) Interest rate risk exposure
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of cash and deposits held by the Board will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.
It is deemed that the sensitivity on interest rate risk is immaterial.
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The Board considers that the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities recorded in the financial statements approximates
their fair value.

20. Subsequent events
There has not been any matter or circumstance occurring
subsequent to the end of the financial year that has significantly
affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Board.

President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer’s Declaration

Emergency Services Superannuation Board
for the year end 30 June 2017
The Emergency Services Superannuation Board hereby declares:
(a) The attached financial statements for the Emergency Services Superannuation Board have been prepared in accordance with
Standing Direction 5.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting
Standards including Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting requirements;
(b) In our opinion, the information set out in the Statement of Financial Position, Comprehensive Operating Statement, Statement of
Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and accompanying notes presents fairly the financial transactions during the financial
year ended 30 June 2017 and the financial position of the Board at 30 June 2017; and
(c) At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in the financial
statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Members of the Board of the Emergency Services Superannuation Board (ABN 28 161 296 741).
Dated at Melbourne this 24th day of August 2017.

Joan Fitzpatrick
President
ESSSuper

Mark Puli
Chief Executive Officer
ESSSuper

Paul Healey
Chief Financial Officer
ESSSuper

ESSSuper Annual Report 2017

81

Auditor General’s Report

82

ESSSuper Annual Report 2017

ESSSuper Annual Report 2017

83

Disclosure Index
Ministerial Directions
FRD10A Disclosure Index
Reference

Requirement

Page Reference
The Scheme

The Board

General Information
FRD 22H

Manner of establishment and the relevant Minister

8, 45

8, 78

FRD 22H

Purpose, functions, powers and duties

5-14

5-14

FRD 22H

Nature and range of service provision, including the communities served

5-7

5-7

FRD 22H

An entity’s purpose, functions, powers and duties shall be linked
to a summary of its activities, programs and achievements for the
reporting period

2-4 & 7-13

2-4 & 7-13

FRD 22H

Organisational Structure, Including members of the Board, Audit
Committee, CEO, Senior Officers and their responsibilities

9-11

9-11

FRD 22H

Statement of Occupational Health and Safety matters, including
performance details

12

-

FRD 22H

Summary of financial results, with comparatives for the proceeding
four periods

25

-

FRD 22H

Summary of significant changes in financial position

26

-

FRD 22H

Summary of operational and budgetary objectives, including
performance against the objectives and significant achievements

25

-

FRD 22H

Significant factors affecting the entity’s performance

25

-

FRD 22H

Details of consultancies over $10,000

13

13

FRD 22H

Details of consultancies under $10,000

13

13

FRD 22H

Details of ICT expenditure

13

13

FRD 22H

Application and operation of the Freedom of Information Act 1982

13

13

FRD 22H

Summary of the application and operation of the Protected Disclosure
Act 2012

12

12

FRD 22H

Statement, to the extent applicable, on the implementation and
compliance with National Competition Policy

12

12

FRD 14A

List of the superannuation funds that it manages

5-6

5-6

FRD 14A

Information about the terms and conditions of membership for each
fund that is managed, including any changes in these during the year

5-9

5-9

FRD 14A

Investment Performance Report

15-24

-

FRD 14A

Actuarial Overview

61-65

-

FRD 15C

Executive Officer disclosures

-

78

FRD 22C

Disclosures of Responsible Persons, Executive Officers and Other Personnel

45

78

FRD 22H

Significant factors affecting the entities performance

15

-

FRD 25C

Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosure

FRD 30D

Standard requirements for the design and print of annual reports

Financial Information

Other Relevant Information
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Annual Report

Other information (including compliance with legislation)
Reference

Requirement

Page Reference
The Scheme

The Board

84-85

84-85

-

Appendix 1

FRD 10A

Disclosure Index identifying compliance with statutory disclosure

FRD 29B

Workforce data disclosures

SD 4.5.5

Risk Management Compliance Attestation

10

10

PSS 1.2

Statement of Compliance with HOGA

11

11

SD 4.4 (j)

The report must be signed and dated by a member of the Board

3

3

SD 2.2 (f )

Outline of independent audit committee members

9

9

Other disclosures as required by FRD’s in the notes to the Financial Statements
FRD 100A

Framework

31

69

FRD 101

First Time Adoption

32

73

FRD 103F

Non-financial assets

36

71

FRD 104

Foreign Currency

34

-

FRD 105A

Borrowing Costs

-

71

FRD 106A

Impairment of Assets

36

71

FRD 109

Intangible Assets

36

72

FRD 110

Cash Flow Statements

30

68

FRD 114A

Financial Instruments

48-57

-

FRD 120J

Accounting and Reporting Pronouncements for the reporting period

32

73

FRD 03A

Accounting for dividends

33

-

FRD 7B

Early adoption of authoritative accounting pronouncements

32

73

Financial Statements
Financial Statements Required under Standing Directions 4.2 in Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994
SD 4.2 (a)

The Financial Statements must be prepared in accordance with
relevant standards

26-58

66-81

SD 4.2 (b)

Statements of Financial Performance (Income Statement)

27

67

SD 4.2 (b)

Statements of Financial Performance (Balance Sheet)

26

66

SD 4.2 (b)

Statements of Cash Flows

28

68

SD 4.2 (b)

Notes to the Financial Statement

31-57

69-80

SD 4.2 (c)

Accountable Officers declaration

58

81

SD 4.2 (j)

The report of operations must be signed and dated by a member
of the board

58

81

Building Act 1983

-

13

Financial Management Act 1994

-

69

Freedom of Information Act 1982

-

13

Protected Disclosure Act 2012

-

12

Victorian Industry Participation Act 2003

-

13

Legislation
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Appendix 1
Workforce data disclosures in the Report of Operations
Full time equivalents (FTE) staffing trends from 2013 to 2017
2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

150.49

150.22

148.12

146.21

134.85

Ongoing Employees

Fixed term & Casual

Number

Full time

Part time

FTE

FTE

June 2017

158

131

27

150.49

3.92

June 2016

160

128

32

150.22

4.00

June 2017
Ongoing

June 2016
Fixed Term & Casual

Ongoing

Fixed Term & Casual

Number

FTE

FTE

Number

FTE

FTE

Female

81

74.59

1.20

78

69.38

2.00

Male

77

75.90

2.72

82

80.84

2.00

Total

158

150.49

3.92

160

150.22

4.00

Under 25

5

5.00

2.42

7

6.95

1.00

25–34

39

37.73

1.00

39

37.43

1.00

35–44

50

46.89

-

48

42.44

1.00

45–54

36

33.81

-

40

38.40

1.00

55–64

20

19.46

0.50

22

21.00

-

Over 64

8

7.60

-

4

4.00

-

158

150.49

3.92

160

150.22

4.00

Executive

7

7.00

-

8

8.00

-

ESSB 1

32

29.59

3.42

37

33.44

2.00

ESSB 2

48

44.60

-

48

43.84

-

ESSB 3

46

44.90

-

42

41.10

-

ESSB 4

25

24.40

-

25

23.84

2.00

Other

0

-

0.50

0

-

-

Total

158

150.49

3.92

160

150.22

4.00

Gender

Age

Total
Classification
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